
MEETING AGENDA
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER (ROOM A108)
56 CHURCH STREET

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213

JUNE 27, 2016, 7:00 P.M.
___________

1. Update on the Lane Parke Project by John Evans of Evson Inc.

2. Approval of the minutes of the June 13, 2016 regular meeting of the City Council.

3. Consideration: Resolution recommending to the ABC Board the transfer of the 040 – Retail Beer
(On or Off Premises) License and the 060 – Retail Table Wine (On or Off Premises) License of
Western Supermarkets, Inc. in conjunction with its relocation from 2717 Culver Road 35223 to
1000 Jemison Lane 35223 effective early to mid-October 2016.

4. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the purchase of two ambulances through the HGAC
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, declaring two 2009 model ambulances surplus, and
authorizing their trade in conjunction with said ambulance purchase.

5. Consideration: Resolution ratifying 1) the bid award for the purchase and installation of two
HVAC units for the Library and 2) the issuance of a purchase order for said purchase with
expedited shipping and installation thereof.

6. Consideration: Resolution establishing the compensation for municipal court justices.

7. Consideration: Motion setting a public hearing for July 25, 2016 at 7 p.m. to consider the
adoption of a resolution approving the Petition for Vacation of a portion of South Cove Drive
filed by St. Luke’s Episcopal Church, for the vacation of a portion of the improved street (South
Cove Drive).

8. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of three (3) service and facility use
agreements between the City and 1) Mountain Brook Athletics, 2) Mountain Brook Soccer
Association, and 3) Mountain Brook Lacross.

9. Consideration: Ordinance amending Section 30-3(a) of the City Code with respect to the time
and place of holding court.

10. Announcement: The next regular meeting of the City Council is July 11, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. in the
Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213.

11. Comments from residents.

12. Adjourn.



Minute Book 88 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

JUNE 13,2016 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council 
Room (A106) of City Hall at 6:00 p.m. on Monday, the 13th day of June, 2016. The Council President called 
the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, Ill, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: Alice B. Womack 

Also present were City Attorney Steve Stine, City Manager Sam Gaston and City Clerk Steven Boone. 

1. AGENDA 

I .  Bridge assessment study-Blair Perry of Gresham, Smith and Partners (Appendix I)  
The Caldwell Mill Road bridge over Little Shades Creek is in very bad condition and should be 
replaced within the next five years 
The Old Brook Trail bridge over Little Shades Creek is in very bad condition and should be 
replaced within the next five years 
The Canterbury Road bridge over Watkins Creek should undergo major rehabilitation within the 
next 5-7 years 
Other bridge replacements in their order of priority are included in the consultants' report 
Structures should be monitored and inspected frequently for evidence of additional deterioration 
The consultants prepared a bridge capital improvement plan 
The bridges are eligible for federal awards administered by the Federal Highway Administration 
(FH WA) 
There is not sufficient money budgeted in the Metropolitan Planning Organization's (MPO) 
projects through 2019. However, sufficient monies may be available to initiate the preliminary 
engineering phases of these projects [for the worst bridges] 
If the City pursues federal funding for the preliminary engineering, the projects must commence 
within ten years or the federal monies must be repaid 
Once the City utilizes federal money for the preliminary engineering the City must either pursue 
federal funds for the improvements as designed, use local money to fund the improvements as 
designed, or repay that portion of the preliminary design fees paid with federal funds 
Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard suggested that a committee be convened to study the 
information after Mr. Boone has analyzed the cost and suggested staging of the improvements 
before deciding whether to proceed with approaching the MPO to seek federal assistance with the 
preliminary engineering phase of the project(s) 
The committee assigned includes: Finance Director Steven Boone, Council member Shelton, City 
Manager Sam Gaston, and Public Works Superintendent Ronnie Vaughn 

2. Design proposal for the roundabout project in Mountain Brook Village-Andre Bittas, engineer with 
the City of Birmingham ("Birmingham") and Alicia Bailey of Sain Associates (Appendix 2) 



Minute Book 87 

Mr. Bittas: 
The project dates back to 20 ! 3 
Several models were considered before deciding the roundabout proposal was the best solution 
Questions remain about the total project cost 
The project budget was established based on the preliminary estimates. Any significant 
deviations will require additional approvals. 
Considerations that can significantly impact the estimated $3.5 million cost of the project include: 
environmental impacts and right-of-way acquisitions 
Bimingham is most concerned with the final total cost and how much it may deviate from the 
current estimate 
Birmingham and the Zoo are concerned about how much of the zoo property will have to be 
converted to right-of-way to accommodate this project 
It is in the best interest of all parties to get a better handle on the unknowns in order to minimize 
our risk of cost overruns 

Ms. Bailey: 
After meeting today, the proposal before the Council tonight will be revised to better define and 
stage the various phases of the project 
The overall scope of the project should not change 
The cost estimate will also be revised 
Once amended, the proposal will be sent to ALDOT for their review and approval 
Once ALDOT approves the proposal, then the proposal will be formalized in a contract 
Then we can proceed with the roundabout project 

Mr. Stine: 
The cost sharing agreement as written states that Birmingham will share equally the local match 
However, the ordinance Birmingham passed limits its obligation to what Birmingham has 
budgeted 
If the total project cost exceeds the current estimate then re-approval by Birmingham may be 
necessary 

3. Review of the matters to be considered at the formal [7 p.m.] meeting. 
2016-078: Council member Carl expressed concern over the dispute resolution process described 
in the cost sharing agreement and asked that this matter be excluded from the consent agenda 

4. Executive session 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, it was moved by Council President 
Smith that the City Council convene in executive session to discuss a matter involving potential litigation. 
The motion was seconded by Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard. The City Attorney certified that the 
subject of the executive session is allowed pursuant to the Open Meetings Act. Then, upon the question being 
put and the roll called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 

Nays: None 

June 13.2016 



Minute Book 88 

Council President Smith declared that the motion carried by a vote of 4-0 and then asked that the 
members of the audience be excused. She also announced that the City Council shall reconvene upon 
conclusion of the executive session at approximately 7 p.m. in the Council Chamber. 

2. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct synopsis of the discussion from the meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama held at City Hall, Pre-Council Room (A 106) on June 13,201 6, and that the meeting was duly called 
and held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and that no 
formal action or votes were conducted at said meeting. 

City Clerk 

J:\Minutes & Agcndas\CounciNO 16\201606 13 Minutes doc June 13,2016 



Minute Book 87 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

JUNE 13,2016 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the City Hall 
Council Chamber at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, the 13th day of June, 2016. The Council President called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present : Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Cart 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: Alice B. Womack 

Also present were City Attorney Steve Stine, City Manager Sam Gaston and City Clerk Steven Boone. 

The City Council President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President Smith then announced that the following matters will be considered at one time on 
the consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the May 9,2016 regular meeting of the City Council. 

2016-068 Recommend to the ABC Board the issuance of an 040 - Retail Exhibit 1, 
Beer (On or Off Premises) and an 060 - Retail Table Wine (On Appendix 1 
or Off Premises) licenses to Crestline Piggly Wiggly, LLC 

2016-069 Declare a 2008 Dodge Dakota SLT truck (VIN Exhibit 2, 
1 D7HW48N38S638743) surplus and ratifiing its sale for fair Appendix 2 
value [car was totaled by insurance carrier as a result of a fire] 

2016-070 Reappoint Thomas George Luckie to the Mountain Brook Exhibit 3 
Board of Education, to serve without compensation through 
May3l,2021 

2016-071 Set a public hearing for July 1 1,2016 at 7 p.m. to consider an Exhibit 4 
ordinance amending Sec. 129-295 of the City Code regarding 
open houses, home tours, and special events in residential 
zoning districts 

2016-072 Set a public hearing for July 11,2016 at 7 p.m. to consider an Exhibit 5 
ordinance amending Articles 1, X i  XI, XI1 of the City Code 
regarding office uses and medical clinics 

2016-073 Approve the lunchtime restaurant conditional use [lunch Exhibit 6, 
service] application for Biscuit Boy at 2708 Culver Road Appendix 3 

2016-074 Appoint the City Clerk as Election Manager for the August 23, Exhibit 7 
2016 general municipal election and any related run-off election 
held thereafter 



Minute Book 88 5 

2016-075 Authorize the execution of an agreement with Details Exhibit 8, 
Communications, Inc. for website design and development Appendix 4 
services for the Emmet O'Neal Library 

2016-076 Authorize the execution of a release agreement with Exhibit 9, 
Brookwood Baptist Church with respect to the May 3,2016 Appendix 5 
private water main rupture caused by a defective [private] fire 
hydrant 

2016-077 Approve the conditional [service] use application for Back-on- Exhibit 10, 
Track Chiropractic at 203 I-B Cahaba Road, Mountain Brook Appendix 6 
[Local Business District] 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes and resolutions were introduced by Council President Smith and 
their immediate adoption was moved by Council President Pro Tempore Prichard. The minutes and 
resolutions were then considered by the City Council. Council member Shelton seconded the motion to adopt 
the foregoing minutes and resolutions. Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, the vote was 
recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said Council minutes and resolutions (Nos. 2016-068 
through 2016-077) are adopted by a vote of 4-0 and as evidence thereof he signed the same. 

2. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION (NO. 2016-078) REAFFIRMING RESOLUTIONS 
2015-164 THROUGH 167 ADOPTED ON NOVEMBER 9,2015 CONCERNING THE COST 
SHARING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY, CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, AND 
ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION WITH RESPECT TO THE 
ROUNDABOUT IMPROVEMENTS, ALDOT PROJECT CMAQ-3715( ) (EXHIBIT 11, 
APPENDIX 7) 

The resolution was introduced in writing by Council President Smith who then invited questions and 
comments from the audience. 

There being no comments or discussion, Council President Smith called for a motion. Council 
member Shelton made a motion for the adoption of said resolution, The motion was seconded by Council 
President Pro Tempore Pritchard. Thereupon, Council President Smith called for vote with the following 
results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, Il l ,  Council President Pro Tempore 
Lloyd C. Shelton 

Nays: Jack D. Carl 

The Council President Smith declared that the said resolution (No. 201 6-078) is hereby adopted by a 
vote of 3-1 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

Junc 13,2016 



6 Minute Book 87 

3. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE (NO. 1953) AMENDIUNG ARTICLE VI OF THE 
CITY CODE WITH RESPECT TO THE CITY'S DISASBILITY DISCRIMINATION 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE (APPENDIX 12, APPENDIX 8) 

The ordinance was introduced in writing by Council President Smith who then invited questions and 
comments from the audience. 

There being no comments or discussion, Council President Smith called for a motion. Council 
President Pro Tempore Pritchard made a motion that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would 
prevent the immediate consideration and adoption of said ordinance be suspended, and that unanimous consent 
to the immediate consideration of said ordinance is given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be 
waived. The motion was seconded by Council member Carl and was carried, as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared the motion carried by a vote of 4-4.  

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council President Pro Tempore 
Pritchard then moved for the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council President 
Smith. Thereupon, Council President Smith called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, Ill, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared that the said ordinance (No. 1953) is hereby adopted by a vote 
of 4-0 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS REGARDING THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL 

Council President Smith announced that the next meeting of the Mountain Brook City Council will be 
held on Monday, June 27,2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, 
Mountain Brook, AL 3521 3. Please visit the City's web site (www.mtnbrook.orr?) for more information. 

5. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Council President Smith adjourned 
the meeting. 

June 13.2016 



Minute Book 88 

6. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct transcript of the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama held at 
City Hall, Council Chamber (Room A 108) on June 13,201 6, and that the meeting was duly called and held in 
all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and that a quorum was 
present. 

City Clerk 

EXHIBIT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-068 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby recommends to the State of Alabama, Alcoholic Beverage Control Board, the issuance of a 040 
-Retail Beer (On or Off Premises) License and a 060 -Retail Table Wine (On or Off Premises) License to 
Crestline Piggly Wiggly, LLC (trade name Crestline Piggly Wiggly) located at 41 Church Street, Mountain 
Brook, AL 35213. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby instructed to forward a copy of this 
resolution to the State of Alabama, Alcoholic Beverage Control Board. 

APPENDIX 1 

EXHIBIT 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-069 
WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain personal property that is no longer 

needed for public or municipal purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, experienced a vehicle fire involving a 2008 
Dodge Dakota SLT truck that was determined to be damaged beyond repair by the City's insurance carrier; 
and 

WHEREAS, Section 1 1-43-56 of the Alabama Code of 1975 authorizes the municipal governing 
body to dispose of unneeded personal property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, as 
follows: It is hereby declares that the following property owned by the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama is 
not needed for public or municipal purposes and is hereby declared surplus property: 

Item Asset Description Notes 
1 1363 1 2008 Dodge Dakota SLT truck (VIN Public Works 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
the sale of the totaled vehicle to Travelers Insurance in consideration of the salvage value in the amount of 
$9,701.79 net of the $1,000 deductible is hereby ratified. 

APPENDIX 2 

June 13,2016 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-079 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
the City Council hereby recommends to the State of Alabama, Alcoholic Beverage Control Board, 
the transfer of the 040 - Retail Beer (On or Off Premises) License and the 060 - Retail Table 
Wine (On or Off Premises) License of Western Supermarkets, Inc. in conjunction with its 
relocation from 271 7 Culver Road 35223 to 1000 Jemison Lane 35223 effective early to mid- 
October 20 16. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby instructed to forward a 
copy of this resolution to the State of Alabama, Alcoholic Beverage Control Board. 

ADOPTED: This 27th day of June, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 27th day of June, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certib the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on June 27,201 6, as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Western Supermarkets ABC License Transfer 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

P. 0. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213-0009 
Telephone: 205.802.2400 
Facsimile: 205.879.6913 
www.mtnbrook.org 

June 28,2016 

Ms. Valencia Johnson 
Alabama ABC Board 
234 Aquarius Drive, Suite 103 
Homewood, AL 35209 

Gentlemen: 

Attached is a copy of a resolution passed at the June 27,2016, City Council meeting recommending the 
transfer of the 040 - Retail Beer (On or Off Premises Only) and a 060 - Retail Table Wine (On or Off 
Premises Only) licenses of Western Supermarkets, Inc.: 

To: 
Western Supermarkets, Inc. 
1000 Jemison Lane 
Mountain Brook, AL 35223 

If you have any questions, please call me at 802-3825. 

Sincerely, 

Steven Boone 
City Clerk 

Enclosure 

From: 
Western Supermarkets, Inc. 
271 7 Culver Road 
Mountain Brook, AL 35223 

c: D. Metcalf 
c/o dmetcalf~westernswerms~kr;ts~c~ 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-080 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, that the City Council 
hereby authorizes the purchase of two (2) Type 1, MXPI SOW Ford Diesel V8 P-up 4x4 F450 150"L x 
95"W x 72"HR ambulances in consideration of $398,200 (for both units combined after trade-in@) as 
more fully described herein below); and 

WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain personal property that is no 
longer needed for public or municipal purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1 1-43-56 of the Alabama Code of 1975 authorizes the municipal governing 
body to dispose of unneeded personal property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
as follows: It is hereby declares that the following property owned by the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama is not needed for public or municipal purposes and is hereby declared surplus property: 

Item Asset Description Notes 
I 13853 2009 Chevrolet CC4500 Type Il l  1GBE4V1919F401608 

2 13852 2009 Chevrolet CC4500 Type 111 1 GBE4V1959F401577 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that the Fire Chief is hereby authorized to trade-in for consideration in the amount of $38,000 (for both 
vehicles) the above vehicles in conjunction with the purchase of two replacement ambulances as 
described above. 

ADOPTED: This 27th day of June, 20 16. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 27th day of June, 2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on June 27,2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting. 

City Clerk 

Ambulance Purchase and Surplus Property 



Steve Boone ~boones@rnlnbrook.org~ 1;20 PM (0 
minutes ago) 

to Christopher 

I will prepare resolutions for the 6/27/2016 agenda authorizing you to proceed with the purchase and the related trade-ins. 

On Tue. Jun 23. 2016 at l:f 5 PM, Christopher Mullins <mullinsamtnbrook.orq> wrote: 
Steve - 
As you know, we have two new ambulances scheduled for purchase in the P116 Budget. 
We would like to purchase the units through the HGAC cooperative purchasing agreement, which the city is a 
member of. By doing so we will not be requlred to go through the bid process. 
We have researched several companies and compared tentative pricing. We believe that Demers offers the best 
apparatus in our price range. We further belleve that the price point will be better using the HGAC. 

You will notice that the total price for both units is $398,200. We only have $350,000 budgeted. The primary 
reason that our budget figures are off to this degree is due to a new standard adopted by the state in July 2015 
(after budgets were submitted), requiring a new type of stretcher restraint system. This mandated system adds 
over $20,000 to each unit. The power stretcher that we had originally intended to purchase separately ($15,000) 
is also included in this price. 

I will need to carry this over into the N17 budget because of the uncertainty of a delivery date. The manufacturer 
anticipates having the units ready by September but said that there was a possibility that it could run into October. 

I would assume that we will need to go ahead and declare the two units that we will be trading in as 
"surplus". See info below. 
2009 Chevrolet CC4500 Type 111 - VIN lGBE4V1919F401608 
2009 Chevrolet CC4500 Type 111 - VIN lGBE4Vl959F401577 

Link to HGAC 
www.haacbuv.omlhomel 

Our password is 14-4302 

Thanks and let me know if you have any questions. 

- Forwarded message - 
From: Brad Appleton cgadetonb@mtnbrook.orq> 
Date; Fri, Jun 17,2016 at 1:33 PM 
Subject: Fwd: HGAC contract: Revised 
To: Adam Bomar cbomara@mtnbrook.org>, Heathe Watkins cwatkinshbmtnbrook.org>, Jonathan King <kinaibmtnbrook.orq>, 
Andrew Gidley <aidleva@mtnbrook.orq>, Stacey Cole ~wlesbmtnbmok.orqr. Chrbtopher Mullins cmullins~mtnbrook.orq~. 
David Kennedy <kennedvd@mtnbrook.orq> 

Forwarded message - 
From: Rob Cartes < m r t e e b e e w >  
Date: Fri, Jun 17.2016 at f:OO PM 
Subjuct; HCAC contn+ R=hd 
To: Brad Appleton <a] @rntnbrwk.org> 

.w 
I'm showing the reduction as a 'volume" discount in the bottom left section and I didn't remove anything else from your urn 

published options. I really want you to get what you want. 
+ SLryker Power Load with batt charger options is Included in Demers base price contract of $160,560: Product code EA03 noted 
on the sheet. 
What's ncxt: 

Send the attached HGAC forms lo Jackie Patmer at HGAC jackie.~almer@h-aac.com 
f Direct: 71 3-993-2468 1 Fax: 71 3-993-4548 
Jackle will send me or you an order confirmation after she reviews. 
Upon receiving the order I will submu it for bulld with Derners (to get a head start I have already requested drawings) 

t luok fiwwiinl lo hwring lnltn Jackicol HGAC soon! 
Rob 

mbcartee 
Ambulance Product Sales Manager 

cell x6.466.2772 
rcarteeQeelrrolne.com 





Demers Un-Published Options Worksheet: Mountain Brook Fire, Alabama rev 2 

I 1 Un-Published O~tions: I Cost Per Truck: 

I UNPUBLISHED llJpgrade to Liquidspring suspension 1 $ 3,490.00 1 
- 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

I UNPUBLISHED l~iamond date ur, entire front of extrusions see ~ h o t o  (Wraps corners) I $ 900.00 1 

- 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

Two (2) amber LED turning arrows direction lights (intermediate side mounted) 

Two (2) rear mid height red LED marker lights 

Two (2) clear/red LED intersection lights with turning priority 

Two (2)  rear loadina LEO liahts 

$ 365.00 

f 155.00 

f 315.00 

$ 365.00 
- - - -- - - - 

Storage cabinet with LED strip lighting and flip up door 

Custom radio communication installation 

Buell - Air horns: to be mounted in valance below front bumper as high as possible. 

Whelen Pioneer- Front Center - PFPl - Flood FRONT: R J W / R / PIONEER / R / W / R 

Federal EQ2B electronic Q 

. - - - . . .- 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

$ 770.00 

$ 350.00 

$ 2,600.00 

$ 1,040.00 

$ 1,850.00 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

Tablet mount in ECC for iPad (Ipad cradle and swivelpedestal mount ) 

1 Streamlight mounted in S2 - Fie Vulcan - Orange. Up high €504025 

Holligan with Pac bracket in S 1  on door - Florisant 

TNT axe sledge tool with PAC mount 

53 - 1 SCBA mount. back wall, toward rear. For Scott. 45 minute bottle 

$ 850.00 

$ 440.00 

$ 225.00 

$ 225.00 

$ 280.00 

53 - 2 coat hooks on door - Phoenix 

C3 - Solid divider with room for 3 backboards toward rear, Z fixed shelves to front 

Opticom - Frontcenter under white 9 series. Switched separate. HOT with DRIVE 

$ 125.00 

$ 950.00 

$ 2,450.00 



$ 2,450.00 

$ 725.00 

$ 890.00 

$ 1,635.00 

$ 450.00 

$ 2,025.00 

$ 7,125.00 

$ 65 .OO 

$ 1,200.00 

$ 250,OO 

$ 150.00 

$ 37,695.00 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

UNPUBLISHED 

Camera system - DVR - Backup, Interior, Forward and C/S blindspot- ROSCO Brand DV-231Camera 

Put 2 map book slots in cab area. Florissant design 

Mobility - Flip down, Second Patient HEAD SUPPORT YES, No foot support on 53 wall 

Cardiac monitor tray, sliding and turning with ZOLL X Bracket on medical cabinet AFT CPR 

Gloves over CPR seat 

Additional condensor, CIS underneath 

Chassis and module RED - PPG 71528 / GRAY - PPG 906254 (based on current unit layout only) 

ADDITIONAL l lOV outlet in Cardiac monitor area (quad outlet) 

COMPX 200 (not 300) digital lock on narc box - upper ALS. Metal door with shocks. - Florissant 

Fuse block in front ECC to wire in radios and other power. (YUMA Design- Gl6C-1049) 

Intercom system betweeen cab and patient compartment 

Total UNPUBLISHED OPTIONS: 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-081 

WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook has issued an invitation to bid for the purchase 
and installation of two HVAC units on top of the roof of the Emmet O'Neal Library; and 

WHEREAS, bids were received and opened at 10:OO a.m. on June 14,201 6, and the City 
received three bids: 

Brown Mechanical Contractors, Inc. - $1 96,950.00 
Metro Mechanical Services, Inc. - $207,097.00 
Hardy Services - $2 1 2,3 73.00 

WHEREAS, after examination of the bids, the City Council finds and determines that 
the bid of Brown Mechanical Contractors, Inc. is the lowest responsible bid; and 

WHEREAS, the City finds and determines that the alternate bid for the purchase of an 
extended warranty (years 6-10) should also be awarded in the amount of $7,000 ($1,40O/year); 
and 

WHEREAS, the City finds that a change-order for expedited shipping of the 105-ton 
HVAC unit in consideration of a 5% ($7,500) premium is warranted; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby ratifies 1) the bid award to Brown 
Mechanical Contractors, Inc., 2) tlie purchase of an extended (years 6-10) warranty, and 3) 
expedited shipping of the 105-ton HVAC unit (to reduce the shipping time from eight to five 
weeks). 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized and 
directed to issue a purchase order for tlie purchase and installation of W A C  units in accordance 
with the terms of this Resolution and related bid specifications (Re: 8-20] 604 12-050). 

ADOPTED: This 27th day of June, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 27th day of June 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certitjl the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on June 27,201 6, as same appears in the minutes of record of 
said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Award the Bid for the Purchase Two HVAC Units for the Library 2016-081 



Emmet OtNeal Library HVAC Bid 

Thomas, Michael Jun 14 (7 
days ago) 

I have reviewed the bid proposals from Metro Mechanical, Brown Mechanical, and 
Hardy Services that were received today for the 10:OO A.M. bid opening. All three 
proposals contained requested information, pricing and documentation to confirm the 
scope of work was covered. 

Of the three proposals, Brown Mechanical had the lowest base bid price of 
$1 96,950.00. (Metro was $207,097.00 and Hardy Services was $212,373.00) 

I spoke with Chip Pierce at Brown Mechanical confirming the manufacturer of 
equipment being proposed (Trane), and second tier contractors that will be utilized for 
electrical work (Summit) and crane hoisting of the units (Crane Works). We also 
discussed some general "means and methods" that will be implemented for the project 
and felt very comfortable with their initial direction and planning. 

There was one bid add alternate that included the cost for extending the unit(s) 
compressor(s) warranty for years 6 thru 10 at $1,400.00 per year. I would recommend 
accepting this alternate to assure coverage of the compressor cost for this extended 
period of time. 

Therefore, after reviewing all information, I recommend the contract for the roof top 
equipment replacement at Emmet O'Neal Library be awarded to Brown Mechanical. 

Respectfully 

Michael Thomas, CHC 
MEP Group Manager 

BRASFIELD & GORRIE, L.L.C. 
3021 7th Avenue South 
Birmingham, Alabama 35233 



RE: Mountain Brook library electrical 
Thomas, Michael 

to chip, me 

In accordance with the Invitation to Bid document dated May 25, 2016 from the City of 
Mountain Brook, Section C (Specific Requirements) listed details of the existing units for 
replacement. In addition, original contract drawings were e-mailed to bidding contractors June 
1, 2016 for the benefit of matching replacement equipment for the bid. Therefore, the ultimate 
task of providing the correct replacement equipment will the responsibility of the awarded 
contractor for the project. 

In reviewing the Trane submittals for the replacement units for the above referenced project, 
please find the following comments: (These comments are not to be all inclusive of the overall 
intent to provide a comptete and functioning system, but rather inquiries based on comparing 
numbers from the original contract documents and the unit data provide as the replacement 
units for the project.) 

The original design documents for the library listed the leaving dry bulb (LDB) temperature at 
56.0 degrees and the leaving dry bulb (LDB) temperature at 52.8 degrees. The proposed 
submittal lists the LDB at 59.1 degrees and the LWB at 57.53 degrees. 

The original design documents for the library listed the leaving dry bulb (LDB) temperature at 
55.4 degrees and the leaving dry bulb (LDB) temperature at 53.4 degrees. The proposed 
submittal lists the LDB at 64.22 degrees and the LWB at 61.12 degrees. 

The original design sensible load was listed at 192 MBH and the new proposed unit is listed at 
189.83 MBH 

The original powered exhaust was listed at 5,500 CFM and the new proposed unit does not 
currently list the powered exhaust CFM. 

Although there is not a formal Engineer Review of the submittals, please provide responses 
from Trane to the above comments to verify proposed units will provide expected results based 
on information provided during the bidding process. 

We look forward to working with you on this project. 

Respectfully 

Mike Thomas, CHC 
ME? Group Manager 
Brasfield & Gorrie 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-082 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the 
compensation for service for municipal court justices shall be $900 monthly for each judge effective July 
1,201 6 and the judges shall balance their court schedules administratively. 

ADOPTED: This 27th day of June, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 27th day of June, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at its 
regular meeting held on June 27,201 6, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Compensation for Municipal Justices (amends Resolution No. 201 3-135) 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-135 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the 
compensation for service for municipal court justices shall be %450/[court] day effective October 1,2013; 
and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that the compensation for service as a municipal prosecutor shall be $1 10 per hour (plus out-of-pocket 
expenses) effective October 1,201 3. 

ADOPTED: This 23rd day of September, 2013. 

APPROVED: This 23rd day of September, 201 3. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at its 
regular meeting held on September 23,2013, as same appears in the minules of record ofsaid meeting. 

City Clerk 

Compensation for Municipal Justices and Prosecutor 



M e m o  

TO: Mayor Terry Oden 

FROM: Carl Johnson, Burgin Kent, Massey Relfe and Steve Shaw 

RE2 Municipal Court Compensation for Judges and Prosecutor 
2013-2014 

DATE: August 22,2013 

Dear Mayor Oden: 

Thank you for allowing us the opportunity to review the current compensation for the 
Municipal Court for the City of Mountain Brook for the Judges and the Prosecutor. We have 
had the opportunity to discuss this matter and have talked with several present and former 
Prosecutors and Judges for various cities in the area regarding their compensation. We have 
either talked directly with individuals or they have advised of their understanding of the 
various pay levels for cities such as Irondale, Leeds, Warrior, Trussville, Hoover, Vestavia 
and Nomewood. We have also had the opportunity to review payments from the City of 
Mountain Brook for the year 20 12. It is our understanding that at present the Judges are paid 
$288.00 per day and the Prosecutor is paid $90.00 per hour. We have outlined below our 
recommendation for consideration by the City for compensation for 20 13-2014 fiscal year. 

1. Judges - We would recommend consideration of an increase to $450.00 per 
day. Based on our understanding for the payments for Judges Johnson and Williams (this 
excludes any pay for any other Judges who may have served) if the daily compensation was 
increased to $450.00 this would result in a budget increase of the payment to the Judges in 
the amount of a $8,454.00, for 201 3-14. 

2. Prosecutor - We would recommend consideration of an increase in the hourly 
rate to 51 10.00 per hour, Upon reviewing the pay for the Prosecutor we reviewed a 
difference in pay at the current rate of $90.00 per hour and a proposed recommendation of 
$1 10.00 per hour. If the same number of hours were billed for 20 13 as in 20 12, this would 
result in a budget increase in the amount of a $7,301.00, for 2013-14. 

3. Combined Budget Increase - Assuming the number of days and hours are the 
same for 2013-14 as they were calendar year 2012, the combined increase in the budget 
would be approximately $1 5,755.00. 

If you wish for us to review further matters, we will be glad to do so but we wanted 
to go ahead and get this information to you for your consideration. 



MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Notice is hereby given that, at its regular meeting on Monday, July 25,201 6, to be held at 
7:00 p.m. at Mountain Brook City Hall, 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
35213, the City Council of  Mountain Brook, Alabama ("City Council") will consider the 
adoption of  a resolution approving the Petition for Vacation of a portion of  South Cove 
Drive filed by St. Luke's Episcopal Church, for the vacation of  a portion o f  the improved 
street (South Cove Drive) as described herein below and identified on Exhibit A attached 
hereto: 

A PART OF SOUTH COVE DRIVE SITUATED IN THE NORTHEAST !4 OF THE 
NORTHEAST !4 OF SECTION 4 , TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 2 WEST , JEFFERSON 
COUNTY, ALABAMA, ACCORDING TO THE MAP OF SOUTH COVE ADDITION, AS 
RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 36, PAGE 75 IN THE PROBATE OFFICE OF JEFFERSON 
COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 2 ACCORDING TO SOUTH COVE 
ADDITION AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 36 PAGE 75, IN THE PROBATE OFFICE OF 
JEFFERSON COUNTY , ALABAMA; THENCE RUN SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WEST 
LINE OF SAlD LOT 2 FOR 158.86 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2 
AND A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF SOUTH COVE DRIVE AND 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE VACATION HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE 
CONTINUE ALONG THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE AND ALONG SAID RIGHT OF 
WAY FOR 71.14 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LDJE OF 
SOUTH COVE DRIVE, AND THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 3 OF SAID RECORD 
MAP; THENCE TURN 90°00'00" LEFT AND RUN EASTERLY ALONG SAID RIGHT OF 
WAY FOR 23.25 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNTNG OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT, 
SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 193.3 FEET, AND A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 
32'00'00" ; THENCE RUN ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, AND RIGHT OF WAY 
FOR 83+78 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 3 OF SAID RECORD MAP: 
THENCE TURN 74"49'02" LEFT FROM THE TANGENT OF SAID CURVE AND RUN 
NORTHWESTERLY FOR 50.50 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF 
WAY LINE SOUTH COVE DRIVE AND THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 2 OF SAID 
RECORD MAP, AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT; SAID 
CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 143.30 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE 22'24'49" AND A 
CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 72"35'58" WEST; THENCE RUN ALONG THE ARC OF 
SAID CURVE AND ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY FOR 56.06 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, S A D  CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 20.00 
FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 97"48'00' AND A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 
77'35'38" WEST ; THENCE RUN ALONG THE ARC OF SAlD CURVE AND SAID RIGHT 
OF WAY FOR 34.14 FEET; THENCE TURN 9OC00'00" LEFT FROM THE TANGENT OF 
SAID CURVE AM) RUN WESTERLY ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY FOR 20.00 FEET TO 
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 2 OF SAID RECORD MAP, AND THE POINT OF 
BEGINNMG OF THE STREET VACATION HEREIN DESCRIBED. CONTAINING 5625 
SQUARE FEET OR 0.13 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 



St. Luke's Episcopal Church is the owner of Lots 2 and 3 South Cove Addition, as 
recorded in Map Book 36, Page 75, in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson 
County, Alabama, both of which abut that portion of the improved Street (South Cove 
Drive) proposed to be vacated pursuant to the petition. 

At the time and place set forth above, the City Council will receive public comment with 
regard to the Petition for Vacation. Any citizen alleging to be affected by the proposed 
vacation may submit a written objection to the City Council prior to or may request an 
opportunity to be heard at the public hearing. 

Questions regarding the matters that are the subject of this Notice may be directed to the 
undersigned in person or by telephone. 

Dana Hazen 
Director of Planning, Building & Sustainability 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
Mountain City Hall 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 352 13 
(205) 802-3 82 1 

Published by posting at the following locations: 
City Hall, 56 Church Street 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2805 Cahaba Road 
Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Cahaba River Walk, 3503 Overton Road 
Jefferson County Courthouse 



EXHIBIT A 

Copy of Map 

See attached. 



SAINT LUKES EPISCOPAL CHURCH 
RlGM OF WAY VACATION EXHIBIT 

I 6 \ I 

mKHAICS RESUREY Or 
A ~ C E  'c OF ameuow 
M U  B00)( 34 PAGE M \ 

I \ 1 

I I / 

L ,  

2---- murw I 
cow&w€Mml [ 

RON V A U T K * I  I I 
I I 1 I 
I XX~M cox mlnw 1 

i 
I M U  BOOK 56 PADE 75 

$ 1  2 I I 
1 L 4 . W  1 1 

~ T A  erw orr 

1 

MAP BOW J6 PAGE 75 

1 I 
1 I -- 
I I 
L----_I---- 

I 

II*0 m-c L.0 PP- 
--Ro-u.- 

_I 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-084 

BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes the execution of three (3) 
service and facility use agreements, in the form as attached hereto subject to such minor changes 
as may be determined appropriate by parties to said agreements: 

1. Mountain Brook Athletics, Inc. - Exhibit I 
2. Mountain Brook Soccer Association - Exhibit 2 
3. Mountain Brook Lacrosse - Exhibit 3 

ADOPTED: This 27th day of June, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 27th day of June 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on June 27,201 6, as same appears in the minutes of record of 
said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Service and Facility Use Agreements (MBA, MBSC, MB LAX) 2016-084 



EXHIBIT 1 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

FACILITY USE AGREEMENT 

THIS FACILITY USE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into as of June 
27,2016, by and between MOUNTAIN BROOK ATHLETICS, INC., a not-for-profit corporation 
("MBA"), and THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA, a municipal corporation 
organized under the laws of the State of Alabama ("City"). 

WHEREAS, the City has leased certain improved property (the "Premises") for 
recreational and athletic use by residents of the City under terms and conditions set forth in the 
lease between the City and the Board dated February 9,2015, attached as Exhibit A (the "Lease"); 
and 

WHEREAS, MBA has requested that City allow it to use portions of the Premises, from 
time to time, for its community athletic programs, and City has agreed to do so, subject to the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, all of which are satisfactory to, and have been approved 
by MBA. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises, the mutual promises and 
covenants contained herein, MBA and City agree as follows: 

1. MBA Premises. City agrees to grant MBA the right to use that portion of the Premises 
identified on Exhibit B to this Agreement (the "MBA Premises") upon the terms and 
conditions contained in this Agreement. MBA's rights hereunder shall be subject and 
subordinate to the terms and conditions of the Lease. To the extent that the terms and 
conditions of the Lease are inconsistent with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, the terms and conditions of the Lease shall be controlling. 

2. - Term. The term of this Agreement shall be for an initial term of five years beginning 
January l ,20 16, and ending on December 3 1,303 1, and shall be automatically 
extended from year to year thereafter unless prior to July I of any year, either of the 
parties has given written notice to the other party that it wishes to terminate this 
Agreement; provided, that in no event shall the term of this Agreement extend beyond 
the tern of the Lease, even if such notice of termination has not been given. The tenns 
and provisions of this Agreement shall apply to all extended terms of this Agreement. 
Either party shall have the right, at its expense, to record a memorandum of this 
Agreement in the office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

3. Annual Maintenance Fee. In consideration of City permitting MBA to use the MBA 
Premises, as provided herein, and in consideration of City agreeing to maintain the 
MBA Premises as provided hereinafter, MBA shall pay City an annual maintenance 



EXHIBIT 1 

fee ("Annual Maintenance Fee"). The amount of the MBA Annual Maintenance Fee 
shall be $60,26 I. 16 per year and shall be increased to account for inflation every five 
(5) years by ten percent (10%) (the "Inflation Adjustment"). The first Inflation 
Adjustment shall be applied to the Annual Maintenance Fee due and payable on 
December 15,202 1. The Annual Maintenance Fee shall be due and payable on 
December 15 of each year this Agreement (or renewal thereof) is in effect. The first 
such Annual Maintenance Fee is due and payable on December 15,20 16. 

City shall keep reasonably detailed records of the cost of maintaining the MBA 
Premises, and the records may be inspected by MBA, at its request. 

In the event that this Agreement is terminated prior to the payment of the Annual 
Maintenance Fee for the year during which the termination occurs, MBA shall pay to 
City the Annual Maintenance Fee prorated as of the termination date on or before 
December 15 of the year in which termination occurs. 

4. Use of Premises. The MBA Premises may be used by MBA and by its invitees, guests 
and those who participate in its athletic programs and other MBA sanctioned events 
("MBA Activities"). With respect to any events sanctioned by MBA other than 
baseball, softball, tennis, or football events, prior approval must be obtained by MBA 
from City for said use. 

5. Prioritv of Use. During the term of this Agreement, MBA shall have priority for the 
scheduling and use of the athletic facilities located on the MBA Premises, subject to 
the rights of the Board referred to in paragraph eleven in the Lease. The City hereby 
appoints MBA to act on City's behalf with respect to rights, duties, responsibilities and 
obligations set forth in paragraph 1 1 of the Lease; provided, that City may revoke such 
appointment, at any time, by written notice to MBA. 

6. Construction of Im~rovements. Subject to the prior written approval of City, MBA 
may, at its expense, install or construct upon the MBA Premises such equipment, 
buildings, structures and other improvements as MBA may desire, including, but not 
limited to, athletic fields and related equipment, fences, roads, outdoor lighting 
equipment and grandstands, bleachers, and other seating facilities for spectators 
(hereinafter collectively called "Improvements"), provided such Improvements comply 
with all applicable ordinances, laws, regulations and building codes. The size of, type 
of, and materials used in, the Improvements shall be in the discretion of MBA, subject 
to the prior approval of City. During the term of this Agreement, City shall have the 
right to maintain, repair, alter, remove and replace any or all of the Improvements 
without the approval of MBA, provided, that all such work and construction shall be 
done in a manner and at times that will not unreasonably interfere with the operations 
of MBA. 



EXHIBIT f 

Removal of Im~rovements. At any time within sixty (60) days after the expiration or 
early termination of this Agreement, MBA shall have the right to remove Erom the 
MBA Premises, at its expense, any or all of the Improvements then located upon the 
MBA Premises that which were constructed entirely by MBA or solely with MBA 
funds. City shall have the right to require MBA to remove any such Improvements, at 
any time prior to expiration or termination of this Agreement upon thirty (30) days 
written notice. If MBA does not do so, City may remove such Improvements at the 
cost of MBA. Any Improvements which are not removed by MBA from the MBA 
Premises after said notice shall become the property of City upon the expiration of said 
sixty-day period. 

8. Maintenance and Re~a i r  of Premises and Grounds. 

a. City shall generally maintain the MBA Premises in a clean and orderly 
condition and shall likewise generally maintain the Improvements. Such 
maintenance shall include lining the playing field, planting grass on the 
fields, cutting grass and providing landscaping. Any maintenance or repair 
work which is the obligation of City to perform may be performed by 
employees of City or, at the option of City, may be performed by another 
party who is an independent contractor or is acting in any other capacity. 

b. Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, City shall thereafter 
have no further obligation to MBA to maintain the MBA Premises. 

c. On or about November 1st of each year, MBA shall deliver to City a list of 
work which it would like for City to consider during the period between 
November 1st and the following January 15th. City may undertake such 
work in its sole discretion. 

d. MBA will request parents of participants in its programs to assist in 
keeping the MBA Premises clean, and MBA will require the participants to 
remove and dispose of loose trash from dugouts, fence lines and fields after 
each game held on MBA Premises. 

9. Rules and Rermlations. MBA may adopt rules and regulations for the use of the MBA 
Premises by MBA. Any such rules and regulations shall be submitted to the City for 
its review and approval. City may adopt or implement such additional rules and 
regulations concerning use of the MBA Premises from time to time in its discretion. 

10. Utiiities. Utility service, including field lighting to the MBA Premises, is included in 
the Annual Maintenance Fee and MBA shall not be required to pay directly for utility 
services which are furnished to the MBA Premises, except for telephone service to the 
concession stand, which shall be paid for by MBA. Field lighting will be provided for 
scheduled practices and games only, unless special permission is obtained from City. 

3 



EXHIBIT 1 

1 1. Concession Oaerations. MBA may operate and receive any profits from the sale of 
concessions on the MBA Premises during MBA Activities. 

12. Tournaments. The MBA Premises may be used for Tournaments. All applications for 
Tournaments to be held on the MBA Premises must be submitted to City no later than 
thirty days before the beginning of such Tournament. "Tournaments" are defined as 
state, national, or regional tournaments involving teams other than those organized and 
operating under the supervision of MBA. If it is determined by City that the notice for 
any Tournament is not adequate, City shall not be obligated to prepare the field or 
fields which will be used for such Tournament. 

13. Profits From Tournaments and other Activities of MBA. All profits derived from 
Tournaments and MBA Activities shall be used for the maintenance, repair, 
improvement and benefit of the MBA Premises ("the Improvement of the MBA 
Premises") or for MBA operations. Profits derived fiom Tournaments and MBA 
Activities in each year shall be used for the Improvement of the MBA Premises or 
operations during the calendar year in which such profits were earned or during the 
following calendar year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, MBA and City may agree 
that some or all of the profits from any year may be retained and spent during 
succeeding calendar years if specifically agreed upon in writing by MBA and City. 
MBA shall maintain true and accurate accounting records which will show its 
revenues, expenditures and profits for each fiscal year and which shall be made 
available for inspection by City upon request. If the MBA Activities are not 
exclusivety held on the MBA Premises and involve facilities in other cities or 
jurisdictions, for the purposes of this paragraph, profits shall include only those profits 
specifically derived from use of the MBA Premises (if such can be identified) or the 
portion of the overall profits fiom MBA Activities attributable to use of such facilities. 

14. Public Liability Insurance. During the entire term OF this Agreement, MBA shall 
maintain, at its expense, general public liability insurance or similar insurance as it 
may consider necessary in connection with the MBA Premises (but in an amount of at 
least $1,000,000.00). The City and the Board shall be named as additional insureds on 
such policy. The policy and the issuer of the policy shall be subject to the written 
approval of City, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The policy shall 
provide that it may not be cancelled or any coverage thereunder reduced unless City 
and Board are given at least thirty days prior written notice of such cancellation or 
change. A copy of each such policy shall be delivered to the City Manager of City 
promptly upon its issuance. 

15. Assienment. MBA shall not have the right, without the specific written permission of 
City, to assign its rights under this Agreement; provided, however, that MBA may 
assign its right to use some or all of the MBA Premises to Mountain Brook Soccer, 
Mountain Brook Lacrosse or other athletic entities or associations which have in place 

4 



EXHIBIT 1 

a Facility Use Agreement with City upon notice to City. Any such assignment shall 
not relieve MBA of its obligations under this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of City. MBA shall have the right to permit a party or parties which are not 
boards or agencies of, or otherwise related to, City or MBA to manage or operate 
concession operations on the MBA Premises in any manner which is satisfactory to 
City and MBA. 

16. Damages to Im~rovernents: Fire Insurance. Neither City nor MBA will have the 
obligation to obtain fire or other casualty insurance on the Premises or Improvements 
thereupon. If the City insures the improvements and if some of the Premises shall be 
damaged by any casualty that is insurable under City's insurance policy on the 
Premises, City shall be entitled to receive the insurance proceeds therefrom and may 
elect to either retain the proceeds or restore the Premises. Nothing contained herein 
shall render MBA liable for any repairs to, rebuilding, or replacement of City's 
property on or about the Premises or shall otherwise obligate City to repair, replace, or 
restore the Premises or any Improvements thereupon. 

17. Default. This Agreement may be terminated by either party if the other party commits 
a default hereunder and does not cure the default within the time periods specified 
hereinafter. In the event of any such default, the non-defaulting party may give written 
notice of such default to the defaulting party. If the defaulting party does not cure such 
default within thirty days of its receipt of such notice, this Agreement shall be 
considered terminated, except that, if the nature of the default is such that it cannot 
reasonably be cured within said thirty-day period, the non-defaulting party may not 
terminate this Agreement if the defaulting party begins the cure of the default within 
said thirty-day period and proceeds to complete the cure of such default with due 
diligence and within a reasonable period of time. 

18. Laws and Reeulations. MBA agrees to comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, 
orders, rules and regulations relating to the manner of their use and occupancy of the 
MBA Premises. 

19. Covenants of Cih: Ouiet Enioynent. City warrants and represents to MBA that it has 
the right to permit MBA to use the W A  Premises under the terms of this Agreement, 
that the Lease has been duly executed by City, that Board has not given City any 
notice of default under the Lease, and that to the best of the knowledge, information, 
and belief of City, the Lease is a valid and binding obligation of the Board and City. 
City covenants to keep MBA in possession of the MBA Premises during the term of 
this Agreement, but City shall not be liable for the loss of use of the MBA Premises by 
the exercise of the power of eminent domain, and City agrees that it shall not exercise 
the power of eminent domain to terminate this Agreement or to obtain the MBA 
Premises or to terminate MBA1s right to use the MBA Premises. 



EXHIBIT f 

20. Covenants of Citv. MBA represents and warrants to City that it has the right to enter 
into this Agreement and that this Agreement has been duly authorized and approved by 
MBA. 

21, Entry bv Citv and Board. City and Board may enter and inspect the MBA Premises at 
any reasonable time for any reason. 

22. Amendment of Agreement. This Agreement, including attachments, constitute the 
entire agreement between the parties hereto and may not be amended, modified, 
altered or changed in any respect except by an instrument in writing signed on behalf 
of the parties hereto. 

23. Severabilitv. If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to 
any person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the 
remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to persons or 
circumstances other than those as to which it is heId invalid or unenforceable, shall not 
be affected thereby, and each tern and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and 
shall be enforced to the hllest extent permitted by law. 

34. Notices. When any notice is required or permitted to be given in connection with this 
Agreement, such notice shall be given by depositing it in the United States mail (either 
certified mail or registered mail), postage prepaid and addressed as follows, or to any 
other address of which either party gives the other party written notice by the method 
provided herein: 

to MBA: 

Mountain Brook Athletics, Inc. 
P.O. Box 530774 
Birmingham, AL 35253 
Attention: President 

to City: 

City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 352 13 
Attention: City Manager 

35. Bindine Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit 
of, MBA and City, and their respective successors and assigns. 

26. Captions. The captions used in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not 
affect the meaning of any provision of this Agreement. 



EXHIBIT 1 

27. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance 
with, the laws of the State of Alabama. 

28. Administration of Contract bv Park and Recreation Board. The City designates its 
Park and Recreation Board as the Administrator of this Agreement on behalf of City. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mountain Brook Athletics, Inc. has caused this Agreement to be 
executed by its duly authorized President, and City of Mountain Brook has caused this Agreement 
to be executed by its duly authorized Mayor, all as of the day and year first above written. 

MOUNTAIN BROOK ATHLETICS, MC. 

Its President 

ATTEST: 

CITY OF MOUNTAM BROOK, ALABAMA 

Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 



EXHIBIT 1 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said county in said State, hereby 
certify that Richard Keller, whose name as President of Mountain Brook Athletics, Inc. is signed 
to the foregoing Lease and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being 
informed of the contents of the conveyance, he, as such officer, and with h l l  authority, executed 
the same voluntarily for and as the act of Mountain Brook Athletics, Inc. 

Given under my hand and official seal, this the - day of ,2016. 

Notary Public 

STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said county in said State, hereby 
certify that Lawrence T. Oden whose name as Mayor of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, is 
signed to the foregoing Lease and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, 

a being informed of the contents of the conveyance, he, as such officer, and with full authority, 
executed the sam6 voluntarily for and as the act of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama. 

Given under my hand and official seal, this the - day of ,2016. 

Notary Public 



EXHIBIT A 
EXHIBIT 1 

lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllnl llllll THlS WSTRUM ENT PREPARED BY: 
ZOISBJXQQO~QZ~~O Whit Colvin 
Bk: LR201511 P :%3 
Jeff erron comfy  ,~labama Bishop, Colvin, Johnson & Kent, LLC 

STATE OF ALABAMA ~ 3 ~ ~ ; ) ~ ~ ~ 5 t $ t ' Q $ $ \ r ~ & R ~ ~ 1 m d  On: 191 0 First Avenue Nortll 
Judaa of Probala- alan L .  K l n m  

JEFFERSON COUNTY 
Birmingham, AL  35203 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE AOREEMENT (the "Lease") is made and entered into as of the ?&day of 
February, 2015, by and between the BOARD OF EDUCATlON OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN 
BROOK, a board of education in the State of Alabama (hereinafter called "Board) and the CITY OF 
MOUNTAM BROOK. ALABAMA, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of 
Alabama (hereinafter called "City"). 

WHEREAS, the Board owns certain real estate adjacent to its school buildings upon which have 
been constructed recreational and athletic facilities; and 

WHEREAS, City has contributed significant financial support for such recreational and athletic 
facilities; and 

WHEREAS, City and Board entered into a lease dated October 1,1989 whereby City and Board 
agreed to make the recreational and athletic facilities available, through Ule City, for recreational and 
athletic use by residents of the City under the terms and conditions set forth therein; and 

WHEREAS, the lease has been beneficial to both City and Board, as well as students and 
residents and both City and Board desire to enter into a new lease to replace the original lease and its 
amendments. ' 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises, the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, City and Board agree as follows: 

1. Leased Premises. The Board leases to City, and City leases from Board, that certain real 
property in the City of Mountain Brook, Jefferson County, Alabama, outlined in yellow on Exhibits A-1 
through A-6, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein, together with all buildings, 
improvements, rights-of-ways, licenses and other rights appurtenant thereto (the "Premises"), for and 
during the Initial Term (as hereinafter defined) and as may be extended as provided in this Lease. Board 
covenants to keep City in quiet possession of the Premises during the Tern (but shall not be liable for the 
loss of use by eminent domain), subject, nevertheless, to the terms of this Lease. 

2. m. City will pay Board, as rent for the Premises, the sum of One Dollar (% 1.00) per 
year. 

3. Initial Term. The term of this Lease will commence on October 1,2014 and will continue 
through the 30th day of September, 2024 (the "lnitial Tenn"). 

4. Additional Terms. Afier the conclusion of the Initial Term, this Lease will automatically 
renew itself for additional successive terns of ten (10) years up to a maximum cumulative lease period of 

FqcIdB 
Lcuc Agmmcnt 

City of Mountin Bmott & 
Momlain Brook B d  of Eduutim 



EXHIBIT 1 EXHIBIT A 

eighty (80) years ("Renewal Terms"). Notwithstanding the above, either City or Board may elect to 
terminate the Lease prior to the end of the Initial Term or any Renewal Term by giving the othcr party 
written notice no later than one hundred eighty (1 80) days before the end of the then current term, but 
only for the following reasons; 

a. Funds are not available to meet the obligations set forth in this Lease; or 

b. The Premises are no longer suitable or needed for City recreational purposes; or 

c, Thc Premises are necdcd by Board for construction of school buildings. 

In the event of any of the foregoing and upon the provision of the specified noticc, the Lease will be 
tcrminatcd as of the end of the then current term. 

5. yse  of Premises. City covenants and agrees to use and occupy the Premises for 
recreational and related municipal purposes, for community activities, and for other related activities as 
may be deemed by the City of Mountain Brook to be beneficial to its residents, licensees, invitees, and 

L 

guests. The Premises may firrther be utilized as a location for the City's Park and Recreation 
Department; to storc materials and items used to maintain the Premises; for communication facilities for 
the City, including telecommunication cquipmcnt and towers, radio facilities and similar facilities; and 
other uses ancillary to the primary recreational use of the Premises. 

City will havc the right to establish rules and regulations for use of the Premises for all purposes 
except for the Board relatcd use described in Paragraph 11 of this Lease. City will have the discretion to 
determine applicable charges and fees in conjunction with its own activities and programs. Board will 
not be required to pay any such charges or fees for use of the Premises, except as is otherwise provided in 
this Lease. City will not be obligated to permit the use of the Premises, or any part thereof, for any 
program or event of the Community Education Program, or any other entity, which, in City's discretion, 
it cannot reasonably accommodate. 

6. Condition of the Frcmises. Thc Premises are leased to City subject to existing casements, 
if any, and all laws, ordinances, orders and regulations of any lawful governmental authority having 
jurisdiction over the Premises. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as a wananty that the 
Premises are in good condition or are fit or suitablc for the uses or purposes for which they are leased, 
and Board has made no representation or promises with respect to thc Prcmises except as expressly sct 
forth in this Lease. City has examined the Premises and accepts them in the physical condition that now 
exists (except as otherwise expressly provided in this Lease). The Premises are being leased "AS IS" and 
it is acknowledged that the City may need to make additional improvements to the Premises to make 
them suitable for the City's continued use. 

Without limitation of the foregoing, Board specifically disclaims any express or implied 
covenants, warmnties or representations (a) as to the past, present or futurc existencc of any toxic 
substances or hazardous waste on or under the Premises or the improvements located thereon, (b) as to 
the compliance by the Premises or the use thereof with any applicable building or zoning codes or other 
land use regulations, any applicable environmental laws or regulations, or any other applicable laws or 
regulations, or (c) as to fitness for a particular purpose or of habitability of the Premises. City will be 

Page 2 01 6 
Larc Apcnnmt 

City ~TMounllin Bmk & 
Mounuin Brook Boud of Education 



EXHIBIT 1 EXHIBIT A 

responsible for any hazardous materials stored or utilized in the City's operations on the Premises and 
City's use of the Premises shall filly comply with all applicable building and zoning codes and other 
land use regulations, any applicable environmental laws or regulations and any other applicable laws or 
regulations. The foregoing covenants, warranties, and representations of the City shall survive the 
termination of this Lease. 

7. Maintenance and Reaairs. City will, throughout the Initial Term or Renewal Terms of this 
Lease, be responsible for all utility, operational, construction, maintenance and repair cost. with respect 
to the Premises and any improvements thereupon, except as provided herein. 

8. Annual Maintenance Fee. In consideration of City's agreement to maintain the Premises, 
Board will pay City an Annual Maintenance Fee. The Annual Maintenance Fee shall be ninety two 
thousand two hundred dollars ($92,200.00) per year (unless otherwise adjusted pursuant to the provisions 
concerning extraordinary adjustment set forth below) and shall be increased to account for inflation: every 
five (5) years by ten percent (10%) (the "Inflation Adjustment"). 

In any year that Board's Share of Operating Expenses, as defined on Exhibit B hereto, exceeds the 
Annual Maintenance Fee (including the Inflation Adjustment) for that year by twenty percent (20%) or 
more, the Board shall pay the Board's Share of Operating Expenses for that year and such shall be 
considered the Annual Maintenance Fee for that year. 

The Annual Maintenance Fee shall be due and payable on December 15 of each year and shall 
cover the period fiom October 1 of the preceding year through September 30 of the year in which the 
payment is due. In the event that this Lease is terminated prior to the payment of the Annual 
Maintenance Fee for the Lease Year during which the termination occurs, Board shall pay to City the 
Annual Maintenance Fee prorated as of the termination date on or before December 15 of h e  year in 
which termination occurs. City shall keep records of all costs attributed to the Premises and will make 
those records available for inspection by the Board upon request. 

9. Alterations and Im~rovements. City may make, at its expense, improvements, 
modifications, and alterations to the Premises including but not limited to the athIetic fields and related 
equipment; fences; paved or unpaved driveways, roads and parking areas; outdoor lighting equipment; 
grandstands, bleachers and other seating facilities; restrooms, field houses, concession stands, press 
boxes, and other buildings; and playgrounds or similar facilities (coIlectively "Improvements"). The size 
and type of the materials used in the Improvements shall be in the discretion of the City. City shall have 
the right to maintain, repair, alter, remove, or replace the Improvements without the approval of the 
Board, provided that: 

a. All such work and construction shall be done in a manner and at such times that 
will not unreasonably interfere with the operation of any school now or hereafter 
located on the Board's property; and 

b. Such Improvements are consistent with the permitted uses for the Premises. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the removal of any building from the Premises shall require the prior 
written consent of the Board, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

P y e 3  or8 
LaK Apxmcn! 

Ciiy of Mountain Bmok & 
Mountain Brook Board of Educacim 



EXHIBIT 1 EXHIBIT A 

No new Improvement that exceeds $20,000.00 in cost will be constructed without the Board's 
approval. For such Improvements, the Board will pay one-third of the cost or as otherwise may be agreed 
upon by the parties. No new Improvement that exceeds %5,000.00 in cost will be constructed without 
first notifying the Board in writing. At the end of each fiscal year, City shall provide Board with a written 
summary of the nature and value of any and all Improvements, and alterations to the Premises made by 
Ciry during the preceding fiscal year (if any). City further agrees to provide, upon request, financial 
records and documents related to all such Improvements. 

All improvements, modifications and alterations to the Premises shall adhere thereto and become 
the propmy of Board, with the exception of: machinery, playground equipment, equipment, outdoor 
recreational equipment and itcms, such items as are usually classified as furniture and trade fixtures, and 
such other items (other than leasehold improvements) which have been brought onto the Premises by 
and at the expense of City (collectively, "City Property"). Any such City Property shall remain the 
property of City, and City may remove the City Property provided all terms and conditions of this L a s e  
have been complied with by City. In Lhe event this Lease is terminated, as provided for in paragraph fow 
(4) of this Least, City shall be entitled to remove the City Property prior to the date of termination, Any 
City Property remaining on the Premises as of the date of termination shall become the property of the 
Board. 

10. Care and Maintenance of Premises. City shall generally maintain the Premises in a clean 
and orderly manner and shaI1 likewise generally maintain the Improvements and keep them in good 
repair during the term of this Lease. City will comply, at all times and in all respects, with all the 
applicable laws and ordinances relating to nuisance on or about the Premises, and the City will not by 
any act or omission render the Board liable for any violation thereof. City agrees to pmnit no waste of 
the Premises, but on the contrary to take good care of same, and upon termination of this Lease to 
surrender possession of same without notice. 

I I. Continued Use bv Board. Board, its agents and representatives may enter the Premises at 
all reasonable times for the purpose of inspection thereof. The Board will have priority of use of the 
entire Premises for School Related Use. For the purposes of this Lease, "School Related Use" means 
Board directed or supcrvistd programs and activities occurring during school hours while school is in 
session. The Board will also have priority o f  use for the following portions of the Premises for use other 
than School Related Use as provided herein: 

Mountain Brook Hieh School Mountain Brook Jr. H i ~ h  School 

Field # 7 and Softball Field House 
Field # I 

Upper Soccer Field 
Tennis Courts 

Lower Soccer Fields 

Football Field 

The Board agrees, with respect to the portions of the Premises for which it maintains priority of use, to 
either provide City with a schedule of all events by July I of each year or to provide no less than forty- 
five days' notice as to the dates and times that it will use those portions of the Premises. 

Page 4 of 8 
ttuc Agrumcnt 

Ciy otMwnuin Bmok & 
Mountain Bmdt Baanl af Education 



EXHIBIT 1 EXHIBIT A 

City has priority of use of the Premises during all times and for all purposes other than those 
specifically described above. 

Board may continue to use the Premises from time to time for events and for other occasions 
upon reasonable notice to City, provided that such use does not conflict with any prior-scheduled event, 
meeting or gathering of the City or any of its sub-lessees. In the event the Board needs to utilize any part 
of the Premises during times when the City has priority of use due to exigent circumstances, the City 
agrees to make reasonable attempts to accommoda~e such need if it can be accommodated without undue 
hardship on the City. 

12. Pavment of Charms. City will h i s h  or arrange for the furnishing of all necessary utility 
services to the Premises and will pay promptly all related charges. Likewise, City agrees to pay all sewer 
rentals and othtr charges becoming due, levied under the authority of the laws of the State of Alabama or 
any taws approved subsequent to the execution of this lease, provided that said charges are allocable in 
whole or in part to the Premises. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each party will remain responsible for 
the payment for power and water services to the Premises pursuant to Exhibit C to this Lease. If Board 
elects to transfer to the City any utility service for which it has responsibility as set forth in Exhibit C, 
City will assume such responsibility and the Annual Maintenance Fee shall be increased by a utility 
supplement consisting of the annual cost of the utility being transferred averaged over the two fiscal 
years prior to the year of transfer. 

Board and City shall each at its own expense and for its own benefit obtain and maintain 
whatever general public liability insurance or similar insurance each considers necessary in connection 
with the Premises. Neither City nor Board shall be obligated to obtain any such insurance by this Lease. 

13. Destruction or Damapes to Tm~rovements. Neither City nor Board will have the 
obligation to obtain fire or other casualty insurance on the Premises or Improvements thereupon. If the 
City insures the Improvements and if some of the Premises shall be damaged by any casualty that is 
insurable under City's insurance policy on the Premises, City shall be entitled to receive the insurance 
proceeds thercfiom and may elect to either retain the proceeds or restore the Premises. Nothing 
contained herein shall render Board liable for any repairs to, rebuilding, or replacement of City's 
property on or about the Premises or shall otherwise obligate City to repair, replace, restore the Premises 
or any lmprovments thereupon. 

i 4. Notices. All notices and demands authorized or required to be given to the City under any 
provision hereof must be in writing and given by certified mail or hand delivery addressed to the City at 
its principal ofice as follows: 

City of Mountain Brook 
Am: Its City Manager 

56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 3521 3 

page s or B 
tcuc Agrcnnm1 

City oTMountain Brook & 
Mountain Bmdc Bard of Education 



EXHIBIT A 

All notices herein authorized or required to be given to the Board under any provision hereof must be in 
writing and given by certified mail or hand delivery addressed to the Board at its principal office as 
fotlows: 

Mountain Brook Boafd of Education 
Attn: T t s  Superintendent 

32 Vine Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 3521 3 

15. Assignment or Sublemnq. City shall have the right to assign this Lease in part or in whole 
or to sublet the Premises or parts thereof to duly constituted boards, departments or agencies of the City 
or affiliates thereof and to the following corporations, groups or entities, their successors and assigns 
(collectively "Approved Sublessees"): 

a. Mountain Brook Athletics, Inc. 

b. Mountain Brook Soccer Association 

c. Mountain Brook Lacrosse Association 

d. American Tower Corporation (limited to the existing cell tower at Mountain Brook 
High School) 

c. Persons or Groups using Prcrniscs pursuant to City's Staadard Rental Agreement, 
(curmt agreement attached as Exhibit D), as may be amended. 

City may not assign its rights under this Lease or sublet all or any part of the Premises, permit occupation 
of the Premises or any part thereof, or grant any license for use of all or any of the Premises, to or by 
corporations, groups, entities or persons other than Approved Sublessecs without the written consent of 
Board. As a condition precedent to such sub-letting, the sub-lessee must assume, in writing, all the 
obligations of the City hereunder, including, but not limited to, those obligations pertaining to use of the 
Premises under Paragraph 5. Unless stated otherwise herein, such assumption shall not operate to release 
City from any agreement or understanding on the part of City expressed or implied in this Lease. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, City shall have the right to permit a party or parties other than Approved 
Sublessees to manage or operate one or more concession operations on Premises whether as a 
sublicensee, licensee, independent contractor or otherwise. 

16. Waste Treatment Plant. The City currently operates and maintains a Waste Treatment 
Plant ("Plant") on the Premises to serve the Premises and some of the Board's facilities. City will 
continue to operate, inspect, maintain, repair, replace or improve the PIant, any related buildings and 
improvements as necded to serve the Premises. City may enlarge or improve the Plant as needed to sewe 
the Premises; provided, however, that the City shall not be obligated to increase the Plant capacity due to 
Board use. Board will adopt or implement measures, as recommended by City, to ensure that its use of 
Plant does not compromise Plant operations or increase maintenance or operational costs by City. 

17. Waiver. The failure of City or Board to insist upon strict performance of any of the 
covenants or conditions of this Lease or to exercise any option herein conferred in any one or more 
instances shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such covenants, conditions or 

Page 6 of 6 
tcrre Agemcnt 

City of M o u n h  Brmk & 
Mounrrin Bmok Boud of Educuion 



EXHIBIT A 

options, but the same shall be and remain in full force'and effect. 

18. Bindine Eflect. The agreements, covenants, conditions and terms contained in this Lease 
shall bind and inure to the bencfit of City and Board and their respective successors and permitted 
assigns. 

19. Entirc Amcement. This Leasc contains the cntirc agrecmcnt between the parties hereto, 
and neither party is bound by any representation or agrcemtnts of any kind except as herein contained, 
and no amendments hereto shall be considered as effective unless and until the same shall be reduced to 
writing and executed by all the parties hereto. 

20. Construction. The captions or headings in this Lease are provided for convenience only 
and shall not affect its construction or interpretation. All words used in this Lease shatl be construed to 
be of such gender or number as the circumstances require. Unless otherwisc expressly providcd, the 
word "incIudingii does not limit the preceding words or terms. The terms "herein", "hereof ', "hereto" or 
"hereunder" or similar terms shall be deemed to refer to this Leasc as a whole and not to a particular 
paragraph or section. Thc recitals and exhibits attached hereto shall be considered a part of this Lease. 

21. Scverability. If any provision of this Lease is held invalid or unenforceable by any court 
of competent jurisdiction, thc other provisions of this Lcase shall remain in full force and effect. Any 
provision of this Lease held invalid or unenforceable only in par1 or degree shall remain in full force and 
effect to the extent not held invalid or unenforceable. 

22. Countemarts. This Lease may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 
shalt be deemed to be an original copy of this Leasc and all of which, when taken together, shall be 
deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

23. Force Maieure. The parties hercto shall bc cxcuscd for the pcriod of any delay in the 
performance of any obligations hereunder when prevented from so doing by cause or causes beyond such 
party's control which shall include without limitation, civil commotion, war, warlike operations, 
invasion, rebeltion, hostilities, military or usurped power, sabotage, governmental regulations or controls, 
fire and other casualty, inability to obtain any material services or financing or through acts of God. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and Board have exccutcd and delivered this Lcase through heir 
respective duly authorized representatives as of the date first above written. It is understood and agreed 
by the parties hereto that this Lmse shalt be binding upon the City and Board, and their assigns or 
successors in interest. 

MOUNTAW BROOK BOARD OF EDUCATION 

ATTEST: 
fl 

Chairman 

Supcrintendent and Secretary 

Page 7 a t  8 
Law Agreement 

City orMaurrrin Bmok & 
Mcunbin Bmok B o d  of Education 



&&L 
Lawrence T, Oden 

EXHIBIT 1 EXHIBIT A 

NTAM BROOK, ALABAMA 

VirginAc. ~mitli- 
President, City Council 

Mayor 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said county in said State, hereby certify 
that Jane Menendet, whosc name as Chairman of the Mountain Brook Board of Education is signcd to 
the foregoing Lease and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed 
of the contents of the conveyance, she, as such officer, and with full authority, executed the same 
voluntarily for and as  the act of the Mounhin Brook Board of Education. 

Given under my hand and official seal, this the a day of h 6 ,201 5. - 
Notary ~ u b l k  ' 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said county in said State, hereby certify 
that Virginia C. Smith, whose name as President of the City Council of thc City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama is signed to the foregoing Lease and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day 
that, being informed of the contents of the conveyance, she, as such officer, and with full authority, 
exccutcd the same voluntarily for and as the act of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama. 

Given undn my hand and official seal, this the @ day of&k/ ,201 5. 

r*gC%ofR 
Lcve Agrcmwrt 

City olMounmin Bmnk & 
Mounhin Brodc Board of Education 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 1

 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 1

 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 1

 



Brookwood Forest Elementary 

Exhibit A-4 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 1

 



Exhibit A-6 

Mountain Brook Elementary 



EXHIBIT 1 

Exhibit B 

Board's Share of Operating Costs 

The "Board's Share of Operating Costs" will be determined by adding the following components: 

a. Base Fee of  S30,000.00 

b Phase 3 Fiscal Year Operating and Capital Expenses divided by 3 

c. Average Salary and Benefits of City Park Employees Assigned to Premises less 
$30,000.00, divided by 3 

d. Chemical Costs less S8,000.00, divided by 3 

e. Lighting Maintenance Costs divided by 10. 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 1 



EXHIBIT 1 
Exhibit D 

c t n  OF MO~MTAM BROOK 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA 

RENTAL AGREEMENT 

This agreement is entered into on this day, of 20-, by and bctwccn thc City of 
Mountain Brook "City" through its Parks & Recreation Dept. as "Lessor", and 
as "Lessee", for facilities owned and operated by City located at "Facilities" 
Rental privilcgcs are available to residents and p u p s  whctc the majority of the group's memberships arc Mountain 
Brook residents. All r m s  must submit a msta of team members that includes name, address, and phone number. 

t. City hereby agrees that Lessee may use the facilities for the purpose of 
during the period beginning on I I from o'clock until AMP.M. (All 
activities shall cease at dusk in parks with no lighting and no later than 900 p.m, at lighted facilities.) (Except tennis 
courts - 10:OO p.m.). 
2. During this period Lessee shall have full and complete use of the notcd facilitics for said purpose. 
3. Alcoholic beverages and gambling strictly prohibited at all Parks Bt Recreation Board facilitics. 
4. All trash and litter must be disposed of before Icavmg facility. 
5. Lessee agrees to pay the City the sum of $ __,which sum shall be paid to Lessor, upon the execution 
of this agreement at the M.B. Parks & Recreation officc in accordance with h e  following fee schedule. Refunds arc 
only available should the cvtnt bc canceled by the Lcssor, 

Playing Fields: Football, Soccer, Baseball & Softball. 
Daytime 3301 hr. per field 
Lighted 5401 hr. pcr field 
Setupflincd off S 1 9  ca. per field 
Tennis COW S 1 21 hr. per court 
Overton Pavilion 5351 2 hrs. (Rcsidcnts ofMountain Brook) 

5701 2 hrs. (Non-Raidcats of Mountain Brook) 

PAYMENT - Make Check or Monev Order Payable ta: City of Mountain Brook 

To reserve thc above facilitics, contact the following: 

LaTorya Mints, Parks & Rccrcation Dcpt (205) 802-3877 Ovenon Park 
Allen Jones, Parks & R e c ~ t i o n  Dcpt (205) 802-4018 Turf Grass Fields 
Brad Hart, Mtn. Brook Athletics (205) 414-3854 Bescball, Softball, Football 

6. Lesscc a w e s  to indemnify and hold harmless Lessor, ib officials, o f i tus ,  employees and agcnu against all 
actions, causes of action, demands, damages, losses and expenses of any kind, including but not limited to. 
attorney's fees and court costs which may be asserted against, or suffcred by, City on account of, or rising out of, 
this agreement or the use of facilitics by Lessee. In addition, Lsscc assumes all risks in connection with its use of 
the facilitics. 
7. The tcrm of this agrccmat may not be cxtendcd or modified except by a written a p m e n t  between City and 
Lersec. 
8. By using the facilities. Lesscc a p c s  that it shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rulcs and 
regulations and that it shall not allow any activities to be conducted at the Facilities, which are unsafe, dangerous or 
improper in any manncr. 
9. If Ltsscc breaches any term of this agreement, City shall have the right to terminate his agrccmcnt by written or 
verbal notice to Lessee. 

Executed on this day of , 20- 

Signature: Print Name; 

Email: Witness: 
20150325000302000 17117 
Bk: LR201511 P :27633 e Jefferson Coun y,Alabama 

a % 3 t 2 5 l m ~  01.00.21 PH. ! - W E  - . . 
F4a - 165.01 

Total of Fees and Taxes-165.00 
HMYTES 



EXHIBIT 1 

EXHIBIT B 

MBA Premises 

Mountain Brook High School 

All Baseball and Softball Fields except High School Baseball Field 

Mountain Brook Junior Hiph School 

Football Field - Fall only 

Cherokee Bend Elementarv 

All Playing Fields 

Crestline Eiementarv School 

All Playing Fields 

Mountain Brook Elementarv School 

Playing Field - Fall: Sunday through Wednesday 

Exhibit B 
MB-MBA Agreement 



EXHIBIT 1 

EXHIBIT C 

MBA's Annual Maintenance Fee 

The MBA Annual Maintenance Fee will be calculated by adding the following components: 

a. Base Fee of $25,000.00 

b. Phase 3 (Mountain Brook Elementary, Cherokee Bend Elementary and 
Brookwood Forest Elementary) Fiscal Year Operating and Capital Expenses 
divided by 6 

c. Average Salary and Benefits of City Park Employees Assigned to Premises 
divided by 6 

d. Chemical Costs incurred by City divided by 6 

e. Lighting Maintenance Costs multiplied by 23% 

Exhibit C 
MB-MBA Agreement 



EXHIBIT 2 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

FACILITY USE AGREEMENT 

THIS FACILITY USE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into as of June 
37,201 6, by and between MOUNTAIN BROOK SOCCER ASSOCIATION, a not-for-profit 
corporation ("MB Soccer"), and THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA, a municipal 
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Alabama ("City"). 

WHEREAS, the City has leased certain improved property (the "Premises") for 
recreational and athietic use by residents of the City under terms and conditions set forth in the 
lease between the City and the Board dated February 9,201 5, attached as Exhibit A (the "Lease"); 
and 

WHEREAS, MB Soccer has requested that City allow it to use portions of Premises from 
time to time, for its community athletic programs, and City has agreed to do so, subject to the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, all of which are satisfactory to, and have been approved 
by MB Soccer. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises, the mutual promises and 
covenants contained herein, MB Soccer and City agree as follows: 

1. MB Soccer Premises. City agrees to grant MB Soccer the right to use that portion of 
the Premises identified on Exhibit B to this Agreement (the "MI3 Soccer Premises") 
upon the tenns and conditions contained in this Agreement. MB Soccer's rights 
hereunder shall be subject and subordinate to the terms and conditions of the Lease. To 
the extent that the terms and conditions of the Lease are inconsistent with the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement, the terms and conditions of the Lease shall be 
controlling. 

2. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be for an initial term of five years beginning 
January 1,20 16, and ending on December 3 1,202 1, and shall be automatically 
extended from year to year thereafter unless prior to July 1 of any year, either of the 
parties has given written notice to the other party that it wishes to terminate this 
Agreement; provided, that in no event shall the term of this Agreement extend beyond 
the term of the Lease, even if such notice of termination has not been given. The terms 
and provisions of this Agreement shall apply to all extended terms of this Agreement. 
Either party shall have the right, at its expense, to record a memorandum of this 
Agreement in the office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

3. Annual Maintenance Fee. In consideration of City permitting MB Soccer to use the 
MB Soccer Premises, as provided herein, and in consideration of City agreeing to 



EXHIBIT 2 

maintain the MB Soccer Premises as provided hereinafter, MB Soccer shall pay City 
an annual maintenance fee ("Annual Maintenance Fee"). The amount of the MB 
Soccer Annual Maintenance Fee shall be $45,140.79 per year and shall be increased to 
account for inflation every five (5) years by ten percent (10%) (the "Inflation 
Adjustment"). The first Inflation Adjustment shall be applied to the Annual 
Maintenance Fee due and payable on December 15,2021. The Annual Maintenance 
Fee shall be due and payable on December 15 of each year this Agreement (or renewal 
thereof) is in effect. The first such Annual Maintenance Fee is due and payable on 
December IS, 2016. 

City shall keep reasonably detailed records of the cost of maintaining the MB Soccer 
Premises, and the records may be inspected by MB Soccer, at its request. 

In the event that this Agreement is terminated prior to the payment of the Annual 
Maintenance Fee for the year during which the termination occurs, MB Soccer shall 
pay to City the Annual Maintenance Fee prorated as of the termination date on or 
before December 15 of the year in which termination occurs. 

4. Use of Premises. The MB Soccer Premises may be used by MB Soccer and by its 
invitees, guests and those who participate in its athletic programs and other MB Soccer 
sanctioned events ("MB Soccer Activities"). With respect to any events sanctioned by 
MB Soccer other than soccer events, prior approval must be obtained by MB Soccer 
from City for said use. 

5.  Prioritv of Use. During the term of this Agreement, MB Soccer shall have priority for 
the scheduling and use of the athletic facilities located on the MB Soccer Premises, 
subject to the rights of the Board referred to in paragraph eleven in the Lease. The City 
hereby appoints MB Soccer to act on City's behalf with respect to rights, duties, 
responsibilities and obligations set forth in paragraph 11 of the Lease; provided, that 
City may revoke such appointment, at any time, by written notice to MB Soccer. 

6. Construction of Improvements. Subject to the prior written approval of City, MB 
Soccer may, at its expense, install or construct upon the MB Soccer Premises such 
equipment, buildings, structures and other improvements as MB Soccer may desire, 
including, but not limited to, athletic fields and related equipment, fences, roads, 
outdoor lighting equipment and grandstands, bleachers, and other seating facilities for 
spectators (hereinafter collectively called "Improvements"), provided such 
Improvements comply with all applicable ordinances, laws, regulations and building 
codes. The size of, type of, and materials used in, the Improvements shall be in the 
discretion of MB Soccer, subject to the prior approva1 of City. During the term of this 
Agreement, City shall have the right to maintain, repair, alter, remove and replace any 
or all of the Improvements without the approval of MB Soccer, provided, that all such 



EXHIBIT 2 

work and construction shall be done in a manner and at times that will not 
unreasonably interfere with the operations of MB Soccer. 

Removal of Im~rovements. At any time within sixty (60) days after the expiration or  
early termination of this Agreement, MB Soccer shall have the right to remove from 
the MB Soccer Premises, at its expense, any or all of the Improvements which are 
located upon the MB Soccer Premises at that time, which were constructed entirely by 
MB Soccer, or solely with MB Soccer funds. City shall have the right to require MB 
Soccer to remove any such Improvements at any time prior to expiration or 
termination of this Agreement, upon thirty (30) days written notice. If MB Soccer does 
not do so, City may remove such Improvements at the cost of MB Soccer. Any 
Improvements which are not removed by MB Soccer from the MB Soccer Premises 
after said notice shall become the property of City upon the expiration of said sixty- 
day period. 

8. Maintenance and Repair of Premises and Grounds. 

a. City shall generally maintain the MI3 Soccer Premises in a clean and 
orderly condition and shall likewise generally maintain the Improvements. 
Such maintenance shall include lining the playing fields (if requested), 
planting grass on the fields, cutting grass and providing landscaping. Any 
maintenance or repair work which is the obligation of City to perform may 
be performed by employees of City or, at the option of City, may be 
performed by another party who is an independent contractor or is acting in 
any other capacity. 

b. Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, City shall thereafter 
have no further obligation to MB Soccer to maintain the MB Soccer 
Premises. 

c. On or about November 1 st of each year, MB Soccer shall deliver to City a 
list of work which it would like for City to consider during the period 
between November 1st and the following January 15th. City may undertake 
such work in its sole discretion. 

d. MB Soccer will request parents of participants in its programs to assist in 
keeping the MI3 Soccer Premises clean, and MB Soccer will require the 
participants to remove and dispose of loose trash from fence lines, fields 
and other parts of the MB Soccer Premises after each game or event held 
thereupon. 

9. Rules and Reeulations. MB Soccer Rules may adopt rules and regulations for the use 
of the MB Soccer Premises by MB Soccer. Any such rules and regulations shall be 
submitted to the City for its review and approval. City may adopt or implement such 

3 



EXHIBIT 2 

additional rules and regulations concerning use of the MB Soccer Premises from time 
to time in its discretion. 

10. Utilities. Utility service, including field lighting to the MB Soccer Premises, is 
included in the Annual Maintenance Fee and MB Soccer shall not be required to pay 
directly for utility services which are furnished to the MB Soccer Premises which shall 
be paid for by MB Soccer. Field lighting will be provided for scheduled practices and 
games only, unless special petmission is obtained from City. 

I 1. Concession Operations. MB Soccer may operate and receive any profits from the sale 
of concessions on the MB Soccer Premises during MB Soccer Activities. 

12. Tournaments. The MB Soccer Premises may be used for Tournaments. All 
applications for Tournaments to be held on the MB Soccer Premises must be submitted 
to City no later than thirty days before the beginning of such Tournament. 
"Tournaments" are defined as state, national, or regional Tournaments involving teams 
other than those organized and operating under the supervision of MB Soccer. If it is 
determined by City that the notice for any Tournament is not adequate, City shall not 
be obligated to prepare the field or fields which will be used for such Tournament. 

13. Profits From Tournaments and other Activities of MB Soccer. All profits derived 
fram tournaments and MB Soccer Activities shall be used for the maintenance, repair, 
improvement and benefit of the MB Soccer Premises ("the Improvement of the MB 
Soccer Premises") or for MB Soccer operations. Profits derived from tournaments or 
MB Soccer Activities in each year shall be used for the Improvement of the MB 
Soccer Premises or operations during the calendar year in which such profits were 
earned or during the following calendar year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, MB 
Soccer and City may agree that some or all of the profits from any year may be 
retained and spent during succeeding calendar years if specifically agreed upon in 
writing by MB Soccer and City. MB Soccer shall maintain true and accurate 
accounting records which will show its revenues, expenditures and profits for each 
fiscal year and which shall be made available for inspection by City upon request. If 
the MB Soccer Activities are not exclusively held on the MB Soccer Premises and 
involve facilities in other cities or jurisdictions, for the purposes of this paragraph, 
profits shall include only those profits specifically derived from use of the MB Soccer 
Premises (if such can be identified) or the portion of the overall profits fiom MB 
Soccer Activities attributable to use of such facilities. 

14. Public Liabilitv Insurance. During the entire term of this Agreement, MB Soccer shall 
maintain, at its expense, general public liability insurance or similar insurance as it 
may consider necessary in connection with the MB Soccer Premises (but in an amount 
of at least $1,000,000.00). The City and the Board shall be named as additional 
insureds on such policy. The policy and the issuer of the policy shall be subject to the 



EXHIBIT 2 

written approval of City, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The 
policy shall provide that it may not be cancelled or any coverage thereunder reduced 
unless City and Board are given at least thirty days prior written notice of such 
cancellation or change. A copy of each such policy shall be delivered to the City 
Manager of City promptly upon its issuance. 

15. Assignment. MB Soccer shall not have the right, without the specific written 
permission of City, to assign its rights under this Agreement provided, however, that 
MB Soccer may assign its right to use some or all of the MB Soccer Premises to 
Mountain Brook Athletics, Inc., Mountain Brook Lacrosse or other athletic entities or 
associations which have in place a Facility Use Agreement with City, upon notice to 
City. Any such assignment shall not relieve MB Soccer of its obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of City. Provided, however, MB Soccer 
shall have the right to permit a party or parties which are not boards or agencies of, or 
otherwise related to, City or MB Soccer to manage or operate concession operations 
on the MB Soccer Premises in any manner which is satisfactory to City and MB 
Soccer. 

16. Damages to Improvements: Fire Insurance. Neither City nor MB Soccer will have the 
obligation to obtain fire or other casualty insurance on the Premises or frnprovements 
thereupon. If the City insures the improvements and if some of the Premises shall be 
damaged by any casualty that is insurable under City's insurance policy on the 
Premises, City shall be entitled to receive the insurance proceeds therefrom and may 
elect to either retain the proceeds or restore the Premises. Nothing contained herein 
shall render MB Soccer liable for any repairs to, rebuilding, or replacement of City's 
property on or about the Premises or shall otherwise obligate City to repair, replace, or 
restore the Premises or any Improvements thereupon. 

Default. This Agreement may be terminated by either party if the other party commits 
a default hereunder and does not cure the default within the time periods specified 
hereinafter. In the event of any such default, the non-defaulting party may give written 
notice of such default to the defaulting party. If the defaulting party does not cure such 
default within thirty days of its receipt of such notice, this Agreement shall be 
considered terminated, except that, if the nature of the default is such that it cannot 
reasonably be cured within said thirty-day period, the non-defaulting party may not 
terminate this Agreement if the defaulting party begins the cure of the default within 
said thirty-day period and proceeds to complete the cure of such default with due 
diligence and within a reasonable period of time. 

18. Laws and Repulations. MB Soccer agrees to comply with all applicable laws, 
ordinances, orders, rules and regulations relating to the manner of their use and 
occupancy of the MB Soccer Premises. 



EXHIBIT 2 

19. Covenants of Citv: Ouiet Eniovment. City warrants and represents to MB Soccer that 
it has the right to permit MB Soccer to use the MB Soccer Premises under the terms of 
this Agreement, that the Lease has been duly executed by City, that Board has not 
given City any notice of default under the Lease, and that to the best of the knowledge, 
information, and belief of City, the Lease is a valid and binding obligation of the 
Board and City. City covenants to keep MB Soccer in possession of the MB Soccer 
Premises during the term of this Agreement, but City shall not be liable for the loss of 
use of the MB Soccer Premises by the exercise of the power of eminent domain, and 
City agrees that it shall not exercise the power of eminent domain to terminate this 
Agreement or to obtain the MB Soccer Premises or to terminate MB Soccer's right to 
use the MB Soccer Premises. 

30. Covenants of Citv. MB Soccer represents and warrants to City that it has the right to 
enter into this Agreement and that this Agreement has been duly authorized and 
approved by MB Soccer. 

31. Entry bv City and Board. City and Board may enter and inspect the MB Soccer 
Premises at any reasonable time. 

22. Amendment of Avreernent. This Agreement, including attachments, constitute the 
entire agreement between the parties hereto and may not be amended, modified, 
altered or changed in any respect except by an instrument in writing signed on behalf 
of the parties hereto. 

23. Severabilitv. If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to 
any person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the 
remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to persons or 
circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not 
be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and 
shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

24. Notices. When any notice is required or permitted to be given in connection with this 
Agreement, such notice shall be given by depositing it in the United States mail (either 
certified mail or registered mail), postage prepaid and addressed as follows, or to any 
other address of which either party gives the other party written notice by the method 
provided herein: 

to MB Soccer: 

Mountain Brook Soccer Association 
3976 East Street 
Birmingham, AL 35243 
Attention: President 



EXHIBIT 2 

to City: 

City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 3521 3 
Attention: City Manager 

25. Bindine Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit 
of, MB Soccer and City, and their respective successors and assigns. 

36. Captions. The captions used in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not 
affect the meaning of any provision of this Agreement. 

27. Govemin~ Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance 
with, the laws of the State of Alabama. 

28. Administration of Contract bv Park and Recreation Board. The City designates its 
Park and Recreation Board as the Administrator of this Agreement on behalf of City. 

[N WITNESS WHEREOF, Mountain Brook Soccer Association has caused this Agreement to be 
executed by its duly authorized President, and City of Mountain Brook has caused this Agreement 
to be executed by its duly authorized Mayor, all as of the day and year first above written. 

MOUNTAIN BROOK SOCCER ASSOCIATION 

Rv: 

Its President 

ATTEST: 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

By: 
Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 



EXHIBIT 2 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said county in said State, hereby 
certify that , whose name as President of Mountain Brook Soccer 
Association is signed to the foregoing Lease and who is known to me, acknowledged before me 
on this day that, being informed of the contents of the conveyance, he, as such officer, and with 
full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of Mountain Brook Soccer 
Association 

Given under my hand and official seal, this the - day of ,2016. 

Notary Public 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said county in said State, hereby 
certify that Lawrence T. Oden whose name as Mayor of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, is 
signed to the foregoing Lease and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, 
being informed of the contents of the conveyance, he, as such officer, and with full authority, 
executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama. 

Given under my hand and official seal, this the - day of ,2016. 

Notary Public 



EXHIBIT A 
EXHIBIT 2 

lllRllllllllllllllllllllllllllAll Y Ill THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY: 
28150325000302880 1117 Whit Colvin 
8k: LR201511 P :27633 
Jefferson county , ~ l a b u  Bishop, Colvin, Johnson & Kcnt, LLC 

STATE OF ALABAMA i,::;! :A15tLf rfl&&klmd On: 191 0 First Avenue North 
Judpa 01 Probate- RIrn L. Kfnp 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 
Birmingham, AL 35203 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (the "Lease1*) is made and entered into as of the ?$day of 
February, 2015, by and between the BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN 
BROOK, a board of education in the State of Alabama (hereinafter called "Board") and the CITY OF 
MOUNTAlN BROOK., ALABAMA, a municipal corporation organized under the laws ofthe State of 
Alabama (hereinafter called "City"). 

WHEREAS, the Board owns certain real estate adjacent to its school buildings upon which have 
been constructed recreational and athletic facilities; and 

WHEREAS, City has contributed significant financial support for such recreational and athletic 
facilities; and 

WHEREAS, City and Board entered into a lease dated October 1,1989 whereby City and Board 
agreed to make the recreational and athletic facilities available, through the City, for recreational and 
athletic use by residents of the City under the terms and conditions set forth thcrein; and 

WHEREAS, the lease has been beneficial to both City and Board, as well as students and 
residents and both City and Board desire to enter into a new lease to replace the original lease and its 
amendments. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises, the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipc adequacy and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, City and Board agree as follows: 

1. Leased Premises. The Board leases to City, and City lcases from Board, that certain real 
property in the City of Mountain Brook, Jefferson County, Alabama, outlined in yellow on Exhibits A-1 
through A-6, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein, together with all buildings, 
improvements, rights-of-ways, licenses and other rights appurtenant thereto (the "Premises"), for and 
during the Initial Term (as hereinafter defined) and as may be extended as provided in this Lease. Board 
covenants to keep City in quiet possession of the Premises during the Term (but shall not be liable for the 
loss of use by eminent domain), subject, nevertheless, to the terms of this Lease. 

2. m. City will pay Board, as rent for the Premises, the sum of One Dollar (5 1.00) per 
year. 

3. Initial Term. The term of this Lease will commence on October 1,2014 and will continue 
through the 30th day of September, 2024 (the "Initial Tenn"). 

4. Additional Terns. After the conclusion of the Initial Term, this Lease will automatically 
renew itself for additional successive terms of ten (10) years up to a maximum cumulative lease period of 

h @ I o f B  
L a r c  Apeanent 

City of Mounuin Bmok & 
Mountain Brook Boud of Education 



EXHIBIT 2 EXHIBIT A 

eighty (80) years ("Renewal Terms"). Notwithstanding the above, either City or Board may elect to 
terntinate the Lease prior to the end of the Initial Tern or any Renewal Term by giving the other party 
written notice no later than one hundred eighty (1 80) days before the end of the thcn current term, but 
only for the following reasons: 

a. Funds are not available to meet the obligations set forth in this Lease; or 

b. The Premises are no longer suitable or needed for City recreational purposes; or 

c. Thc Prcmises are needed by Board for construction of school buildings. 

In the event of any of the foregoing and upon the provision of the specified notice, the Lease will be 
terminated as of the end of the then current term. 

5. Use of Premises. City covenants and agrees to use and occupy the Premises for 
recrealional and related municipal purposes, for community activities, and for other related activities as 
may be deemed by the City of Mountain Brook to be beneficial to its residents, licensees, invitees, and 

I 

guests. The Premises may further be utilized as a location for the City's Park and Recreation 
Dcpartmcnt; to storc materials and items used to maintain the Premises; for communication facilities for 
the City, including telecommunication quipment and towcrs, radio facilities and similar facilities; and 
other uses ancillary to the primary recreational use of the Premises. 

City will havc the right to establish rules md regulations for use of the Premises for all purposes 
except for the Board relatcd use described in Paragraph I 1 of this Lease. City will have the discretion to 
determine applicable charges and fees in conjunction with its own activities and programs. Board will 
not be required to pay any such charges or fees for use of the Premises, except as is otherwise provided in 
this Lease. City will not be obligated to permit the use of the Premises, or any part thereof, for any 
program or event of the Community Education Program, or any other entity, which, in City's discretion, 
it cannot reasonably accommodatc. 

6. Condition of the Premises. The Premises are leased to City subjcct to existing easemcnts, 
if any, and all laws, ordinances, orders and regulations of any lawful governmental authority having 
jurisdiction over the Premises. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as a warranty that the 
Premises are in good condition or are fit or suitable for the uses or purposes for which they are leased, 
and Board has made no representation or promises with respect to the Premises exccpt as expressly sct 
forth in this Lease. City has examined the Premises and accepts them in the physical condition that now 
exists (except as otherwise expressly provided in this Lease). The Premises are being leased "AS IS" and 
it is acknowledged that the City may need to make additional improvements to the Premises to make 
them suitable for the City's continued use. 

Without limitation of the foregoing, Board specifically disclaims any express or implied 
covenants, warranties or representations (a) as to the past, present or futurc existence of any toxic 
substances or hazardous waste on or under the Premises or the improvements located thereon, (b) as to 
the compliance by the Premises or the use thereof with any applicable building or zoning codes or other 
land use regulations, any applicable environmental laws or regulations, or any other applicable laws or 
regulations, or (c) as to fitness for a particular purpose or of habitability of the Premises. City will be 

Pqc  2 or 8 
LCUtA~pnmmt 

City orMavll.in Bmk & 
Moundn B d  B d  of'Educatian 



EXHIBIT 2 EXHIBIT A 

responsible for any hazardous materials stored or utilized in the City's operations on the Premises and 
City's use of the Premises shall filly comply with all applicable building and zoning codes and other 
land use regulations, any applicable environmental laws or regulations and any other applicable laws or 
regulations. The foregoing covenants, warranties, and representations of the City shall survive the 
termination of this Lease. 

7. Maintenance and Reoairs. City will, throughout the Initial Term or Renewal Terms of this 
Lease, be responsible for all utility, operational, construction, maintenance and repair costs with respect 
to the Premises and any improvements thereupon, except as provided herein. 

8. Annual Maintenance Fee. In consideration of City's agreement to maintain the Premises, 
Board will pay City an Annual Maintenance Fee. The Annual Maintenance Fce shall be ninety two 
thousand two hundred dollars ($92,200.00) per year (unless otherwise adjusted pursuant to the provisions 
concerning extraordinary adjustment set forth below) and shall be increased to account for inflation every 
five (5) years by ten percent (10%) (the "Inflation Adjustment"). 

In any year that Board's Share of Operating Expenses, as defined on Exhibit B hereto, exceeds the 
Annual Maintenance Fee (including the Inflation Adjustment) for that year by twenty percent (20%) or 
more, the Board shall pay the Board's Share of Operating Expenses for that year and such shall be 
considered the Annual Maintenance Fee for that year. 

The Annual Maintenance Fee shall be due and payable on December 15 of each year and shall 
cover the period fiom October f of the preceding year through September 30 of the year in which the 
payment is due. In the event that this Lease is terminated prior to the payment of the Annual 
Maintenance Fee for the Lease Year during which the termination occurs, Board shall pay to City the 
Annual Maintenance Fee prorated as of the termination date on or before December 15 of the year in 
which termination occurs. City shall keep records of a11 costs attributed to the Premises and will make 
those records available for inspection by the Board upon request. 

9. Alterations and Improvements. City may make, at its expense, improvements, 
modifications, and alterations to the Premises including but not limited to the athletic fields and related 
equipment; fences; paved or unpaved driveways, roads and parking areas; outdoor lighting equipment; 
grandstands, bleachers and other seating facilities; restrooms, field houses, concession stands, press 
boxes, and other buildings; and playgrounds or similar facilities (collectively "Improvements"). The size 
and type of the materials used in the Improvements shall be in the discretion of the City. City shall have 
the right to maintain, repair, alter, remove, or replace the Improvements without the approval of the 
Board, provided that: 

a. All such work and construction shall be done in a manner and at such times that 
will not unreasonably interfere with the operation of any school now or hereafter 
located on the Board's property; and 

b. Such Improvements are consistent with the permitted uses for the Premises. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the removal of any building fiom the Premises shall require the prior 
written consent of the Board, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

Page 3 of B 
L t a u  Apancnt 

City orMounuin B m k  & 
Mountain Bmok B w d  of Edw~ion 



EXHIBIT 2 EXHIBIT A 

No new Improvement that exceeds $20,000.00 in cost will be constructed without the Board's 
approval. For such Jmprovements, the Board will pay one-third of the cost or as otherwise may be agreed 
upon by the parties. No new Improvement that exceeds f 5,000.00 in cost will be constructed without 
first notifying the Board in writing. At the end of each fiscal year, City shall provide Board with a written 
summary of the nahlre and value of any and all Improvements, and alterations to the Premises made by 
City during the preceding fiscal year (if any). City further agrees to provide, upon request, financial 
records and documents related to all such Improvements. 

All improvements, modifications and alterations to the Premises shall adhere thereto and become 
the property of Board, with the exception oE machinery, playground equipment, equipment, outdoor 
recreational equipment and items, such items as are usually classified as fumiturc and trade fixtures, and 
such other items (other than leaseho!d improvements) which have been brought onto the Premises by 
and at the expense of City (collectively, "City Property"). Any such City Property shall remain the 
property of City, and City may remove the City Proptrty provided all terms and conditions of this Lease 
have been complied with by City. In the event this Lease is terminated, as provided for in paragraph four 
(4) of this Lease, City shall be entitled to remove thc City Property prior to the date of termination. Any 
City Property remaining on the Premises as of the date of termination shall become the property of the 
Board. 

10. Care and Maintenance of Premises. City shall generally maintain the Premises in a clean 
and orderly manner and shall likewise generally maintain the Improvements and keep them in good 
repair during the term of this Lease. City will comply, at all times and in all respects, with all the 
applicable laws and ordinances relating to nuisance on or about the Premises, and !he City will not by 
any act or omission render the Board liable for any violation thereof. City agrees to permit no waste of 
the Premises, but on the contrary to take good care of same, and upon tennination of this Lease to 
surrender possession of same without notice. 

I I .  Continued Use bv Board. Board, its agents and representatives may enter the Premises at 
all reasonable times for the purpose of inspection thereof. The Board will have priority of use of the 
entire Premises for School Related Use. For the purposes of this Lease, "School Related Use" means 
Board directed or supervised programs and activities occurring during school hours while school is in 
session. The Board will also have priority of use for the following portions of the Premises for use other 
than School Related Use as provided herein: 

Mountain Brook Hieh Scbool Mountain Brook Jr. Hieh School 

Field # 7 and Softball Field House 
Field # I 

Upper Soccer Field 
Tennis Courts 

Lower Soccer Fields 

Football Field 

The Board agrees, with respect to the portions of the Premises for which it maintains priority of use, lo 
either provide City with a schedule of all events by July I of each year or to provide no less than forty- 
five days' notice as to the dates and times that it will use those portions of the Premises. 

P v 4 0 f 8  
Lrsv Agremmt 

City oCMauntam Bmok & 
Mountain B m k  Boud of Education 



- - 

EXHIBIT 2 EXHIBIT A 

City has priority of use of the Premises during all times and for all purposes other than those 
specifically described above. 

Board may continue to use the Premises from time to time for events and for other occasions 
upon reasonable notice to City, provided that such use does not conflict with any prior-scheduled event, 
meeting or gathering of the City or any of its sub-lessees. In the event the Board needs to utilize any part 
of the Premises during times when the City has priority of use due to exigent circumstances, the City 
agrees to make reasonable attempts to accommodate such need if it can be accommodated without undue 
hardship on the City. 

12. Pavrnent of Charges. City will bullish or arrange for the furnishing of all necessary utility 
services to the Premises and will pay promptly all related charges. Likewise, City agrees to pay all sewer 
rentals and other charges becoming due, levied under the authority of the laws of the State of Alabama or 
any laws approved subsequent to the execution of this Icase, provided that said charges are allocablc in 
whole or in part to the Premises. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each party will remain responsible for 
the payment for power and water services to the Premises pursuant to Exhibit C to this Lease. If Board 
elects to transfer to the City any utility service for which it has responsibility as set forth in Exhibit C, 
City will assume such responsibility and the Annual Maintenance Fee shall be increased by a utility 
supplement consisting of the annual cost of the utility being transferred averaged over the two fiscal 
yean prior to the year of transfer. 

Board and City shall each at its own expense and for its own benefit obtain and maintain 
whatever general public liability insurance or similar insurance each considers necessary in connection 
with the Premises. Neither City nor Board shall be obligated to obtain any such insurance by this Lcasc. 

13. Destruction or Darnapes to Irnorovernents. Neither City nor Board will have the 
obligation to obtain fire or other casualty insurance on the Premises or Jmprovemenls thereupon. If the 
City insures the Improvements and if some of the Premises shall be damaged by any casualty that is 
insurable under City's insurance policy on the Premises, City shall be entitled to receive the insurance 
procecds therefrom and may elect to either retain the proceeds or restore the Premises. Nothing 
contained herein shall render Board liable for any repairs to, rebuilding, or replacement of City's 
property on or about the Premises or shall otherwise obligate City to repair, replace, restore the Premises 
or any improvements thereupon. 

14. Notices. All notices and demands authorized or required to be given to the City under any 
provision hereof must be in writing and giveo by certified mail or hand delivery addressed to the City at 
its principal office as follows: 

City of Mountain Brook 
Am: Its City Manager 

56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 352 13 

P a c  5 or B 
Lwr Aptemen; 

City dMmmtain Brook & 
Mountain Brook Board of Fduccllion 



EXHIBIT 2 EXHIBIT A 

All notices herein authorized or required to be given to the Board under any provision hereof must be in 
writing and given by certified mail or hand delivery addressed to the Board at its principal office as 
follows: 

Mountain Brook Boafd of Education 
Attn: Its Superintendent 

32 Vine Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 3521 3 

15. Assipnment or Subletting. City shall have the right to assign this Lease in part or in whole 
or to sublet the P m i s e s  or parts thereof to duly constituted boards, departments or agencies of the City 
or affiliates thereof and to the following corporations, groups or entities, their successors and assigns 
(collectively "Approved Sublessees"): 

a. Mountain Bmok Athletics, Tnc. 

b. Mountain Brook Soccer Association 

c. Mountain Brook Lacrosse Association 

d. American Tower Corporation (limited to the existing cell tower at Mountain Brook 
High School) 

e. Persons or Groups using Premises pursuant to City's Standard Rental Agreement, 
(current agreement attached as Exhibit D), as may be amended. 

City may not assign its rights under this Lease or sublel all or any part of the Premises, permit occupation 
of the Premises or any pan thereof, or grant any license for use of all or any of the Premises, to or by 
corporations, groups, entities or persons other than Approved Sublessees without the written consent of 
Board. As a condition precedent to such sub-letting, the sub-lessee must assume, in writing, a11 the 
obligations of the City hereunder, including, but not limited to, those obligations pertaining to use of the 
Premises under Paragraph 5. Unless stated otherwise herein, such assumption shall not operate to release 
City from any agreement or understanding on the part of City expressed or implied in this Lease. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, City shall have the right to permit a party or parties other than Approved 
Sublessees to manage or operate one or more concession operations on Premises whether as a 
sublicensee, licensee, independent contractor or otherwise. 

16. Waste Treatment Plant. The City currently operates and maintains a Waste Treatment 
Plant ("Plant") on the Premises to serve the Premises and some of the Board's facilities. City will 
continue to operate, inspect, maintain, repair, replace or improve the Plant, any related buildings and 
improvements as needed to servc the Premises. City may enlarge or improve the Plant as needed to serve 
the Premises; provided., however, that the City shall not be obligated to increase the Plant capacity due to 
Board use. Board will adopt or implement measures, as recommended by City, to ensure that its use of 
Plant does not compromise Plant operations or increase maintenance or operational costs by City. 

17. Waiver. The failure of City or Board to insist upon strict performance of any of the 
covenants or conditions of this Lease or to exercise any option herein conferred in any one or more 
instances shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such covenants, conditions or 

Palc6olE 
Leue Ageanent 

City oiMauniain Brook & 
Mombin Bmok B d  oiEducuion 



EXHIBIT 2 EXHIBIT A 

options, but the same shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

18. bind in^ Effect. The agreements, covenants, conditions and terms contained in this Lease 
shall bind and inure to the bencfit of City and Board and their respective successors and permitted 
assigns. 

19. Entire Aercemea. This Lcasc contains the entire agrecmcnt bctwecn thc parties hercto, 
and neither party is bound by any representation or agreements of any kind except as herein contained, 
and no amendments hercto shall be considered as effective unless and until the same shall be reduced to 
writing and executed by all the parries hereto. 

20. Construction. The captions or headings in this Lease are provided for convenience only 
and shalt not affect its construction or interpretation. All words used in this Lease shall be conshued to 
be of such gender or number as the circumstances requirc. Unless otherwise expressly providcd, the 
word "including" does not limit the preceding words or terms. The terms "herein", "hereof', "hereto" or 
"hereunder" or similar terms shall be deemed to refer to this Lease as a whole and not to a particular 
paragraph or section. The recitals and exhibits attached hereto shall be considered a part of this h s e .  

21. Scverabilitv. If any provision of this Lease is held invalid or unenforceable by any court 
of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this Lcase shall remain in full force and cffect. Any 
provision of this Lease held invalid or unenforceabIe only in part or degree shall remain in full force and 
effect to the extent not held invalid or unenforceable. 

22. Countemarts. This Lease may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 
shall be dcemed to be an original copy of this Leasc and all of which, when taken together, shall bc 
deemed to constitute one and the same instnunent. 

23. Force Maieure. The panics hereto shall bc cxcuscd for the period of any delay in the 
perforrnancc of any obligations hereunder when prevented from so doing by cause or causes beyond such 
party's control which shall include without limitation, civil commotion, war, warlike operations, 
invasion, rebellion, hostilities, military or usurped power, sabotage, governmental regulations or controls, 
fire and other casualty, inability to obtain any material services or financing or through acts of God. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and Board have executed and delivered this Lcase through their 
respective duly authorized representatives as of the date first above written. It is understood and agreed 
by the parties hereto that this Lease shall be binding upon the City and Board, and their assigns or 
successors in interest. 

MOUNTAM BROOK BOARD OF EDUCATION 

ATTEST: 
Jane qncndcz,  
Chairman 

Superintendent and Secretary 

Plgc7of8 
Lcuc Agreement 

City ofMounIain B m k  k 
Mavltrin Bmk Board oiEdul lMn 



EXHIBIT 2 EXHIBIT A 

By: 

~r&idcnt, City Council 

I - 

Lawrence T: Oden 
Mayor 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said county in said Slate, hereby certify 
that Jane Menendez, whose name as Chairman of the Mountain Brook Board of Education is signcd to 
the foregoing Lcase and who is known to me, acknowledged before mc on this day that, being informed 
of the contents of the conveyance, she, as such officer, and with full authority, executed the same 
voluntarily for and as thc act of the Mountain Brook Board of Education. 

Given under my hand and official scal, this the ,? day of hid ,2015. 

Notary ~ u b l k  

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undcaigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said county in said State, hereby certify 
that Virginia C. Smith, whose name as Presidcnl of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama is siped to thc foregoing Lcase and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day 
that, being informed of the contents of the conveyance, she, as such officer, and with full authority, 
executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of thc City of Mountain Brook, Alabama. 

Givcn under my hand and official scal, this th 

~ o t G  Public 

Rae 8 of (I 
L o l c  Ammenl 

City otMmnuin R m k  & 
Mountrrn B d  Board af Education 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 2 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 2 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 2 

.-. 
,..-,n.,.-, 

_ 
I
.
"

 
,

,
.

 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 2 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 2 

k
.
.
 A 

.- 
C

 . 
.. I:

 C
"
-,- 

:
 p . 

I
.
.
.
 

.: . 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 2 



EXHIBIT 2 

Exhibit 8 

Board's Share of Operating Costs 

The "Board's Share of Operating Costs" will be determined by adding the following components: 

a. Base Fee of $30,000.00 

b. Phase 3 Fiscal Year Operating and Capital Expenses divided by 3 

E, Average Salary and Benefits of City Park Employees Assigned to Premises less 
530,000.00, divided by 3 

d. Chemical Costs l a s  f 8,000.00, divided by 3 

e. Lighting Maintenance Costs divided by 10. 



Exhibit C 
i 
I 

!Utility Payment Responsibility - Community Athletic Facilities 

;LorPtlon *ccwnt U& MeterNn atV BDE 
hountain a ~ l r  m r y  
a Water 2709534 220225% X 

Power 2693M10U 3063762 X 

+mk@@llendEkrmniary 
. Water 1676344 
, Power 16U6-79Ol5 

Watu 1469534 
Power 071114WWUte 

,U"*w 
a water 9763500 

Pawa 00512-2200s 

PYm- 
Larar-Fields 

water 2738014 
a Power 59112-7ZW6Socecr 
Prppcr-AdQ 
' Water Unable to determine which meter 

POW m162-naia 
pw-nw 

Water 2975124 
Pomr 661111-7W10 field U~hts 

59322-72006 -1 k l d  
hnnbburb 

Water NIA 
Pamr: 34323-33002 lightin8 

J 39UW-32021 New Shop 

-2-7MM brkdrlc 
49S72-72m SLM Sports Park 



EXHIBIT 2 
Exhibit D 

CITY OF MOUNTAM BROOK 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA 

RENTAL AGREEMENT 

This agreement is entered into on this day, of 20 , by and bctwccn h e  City of 
Mountain Brook "City" through its Parks & Recreation Dept. as "Lessof'. and 
as "Lessee", for facilities owned and operated by City located at "Facilities" 
Ratal privileges are available 10 residents and gmups where the majority of the gmup's memberships arc Mountain 
Brook residents. All teams must submit a roster of tcam members that includes namc, address, and phonc number. 

I .  City hereby agrees that Lessee may use the facilities for the purpose of 
during the period beginning on I I h m  o'clock until A.M.P.M. (All 
activities shall cease at dusk in parks with no lighting and no later than 9:00 p.m. at lighted facilities.) (Except tennis 
cou* - 10:OO p.m.). 
2. During this period Lessee shall have full and complete use of thc noted facilities for said purpose. 
3. Alcoholic beverages and gambling strictly prohibited at all Parks & Recreation Board facilities. 
4. All trash and litter must be disposed of before leaving facility. 
5. Lessee agrees to pay the City the sum of $ M h  sum shall be paid to Lessor, upon the execution 
of this agreement at the M.B. Parks & Recreation office in accordance with the following fee schedule. Refunds arc 
only available should the event be canceled by the Lessor: 

Playing Fields: Football, Soccer, Baseball & Softball. 
Daytime 5301 hr. per field 
Lightcd 5401 hr. p a  field 
Setupnincd off S 151 ca. per field 
Tennis Courts S I U hr. per court 
Overton Pavilion $35/ 2 hrs. (Rcsidcnts of Mountain Bmok) 

5701 2 hrs. (Non-Rcsldcnts of Mountain Brook) 

PAYMENT - Make Check or Monev Order Payable to: City of Mountain Brook 

To reserve the above facilities, contact the following: 

LaTorya Mines, Parks & Recreation Dept. (205) 802-3877 Ovenon Park 
Allen Jones, Parks & Recreation Dcpt (205) 802-4018 Turf Grass Ficlds 
Brad Wart, Mtn. Brook Athletics (205) 414-3854 Baseball, Softball, Football 

6. Lessee agrecs to indemnify and hold harmless Lessor, its oficials. officers, employees and agents against all 
actions, causes of action, dcmands, damages, l o w  and expenses of any kind, including but not limited to, 
attorney's few and court costs which may be assczted against, or suffered by, City on account of, or rising out of, 
this agreement or the use of facilities by Lcssec. In addition, Lsscc assumcs all risks in connection with its use of 
the facilitics. 
7. The term of this agrccment may not be extended or modified except by a written agreement between City and 
Lcssec. 
8. By using the facilities. Ltsscc agrees that it shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and 
regulations and that it shall not allow any activities to be conducted at the Facilities, which arc unsafe, dangerous or 
improper in any manner. 
9. If Lesscc breachcs any term of this agreement, City shall have h c  right to terminate this agrcemcnt by written or 
verbal notice to Lessce. 

Executed on this day of , 20- 

Signature: Print Name; 

Title: Phone: 

Email: Witness 
2015032500Q302880 17/17 
Bk: LR201511 Pg:27633 

total of Fses and Taxas-S65.00 
ROATES 



EXHIBIT 2 

EXHIBIT B 

MB Soccer Premises 

Mountain Brook H i ~ h  School 

All Soccer Fields 

Brookwood Forest Elementarv School 

A11 Fields 

Mountain Brook Elementarv School 

Playing Field - Fall: Thursday, Friday and Saturday of each week 

Exhibit B 
MB-MB Soccer Agreement 



EXHIBIT 2 

EXHIBIT C 

MB Soccer Annual Maintenance Fee 

The MB Soccer Annual Maintenance Fee will be calculated by adding the following components: 

a. Base Fee of $10,000.00 

b. Phase 3 (Mountain Brook Elementary, Cherokee Bend Elementary and 
Brookwood Forest Elementary) Fiscal Year Operating and Capital Expenses 
divided by 6 

c. Average Salary and Benefits of City Park Employees Assigned to Premises 
divided by 6 

d. Chemical Costs incurred by City divided by 6 

e. Lighting Maintenance Costs multiplied by 33% 

Exhibit C 
MB-MB Soccer Agreement 



EXHIBIT 3 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

FACILITY USE AGREEMENT 

THIS FACILlTY USE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into as of June 
37,2016, by and between MOUNTAIN BROOK LACROSSE, a not-for-profit corporation 
("MBLAX"), and THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA, a municipal corporation 
organized under the laws of the State of Alabama ("City"). 

WHEREAS, the City has leased certain improved property (the "Premises") for 
recreational and athletic use by residents of the City under terms and conditions set forth in the 
lease between the City and the Board dated February 9,2015, attached as Exhibit A (the "Lease"); 
and 

WHEREAS, MBLAX has requested that City allow it to use portions of the Premises, 
from time to time, for its community athletic programs, and City has agreed to do so, subject to 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement, all of which are satisfactory to, and have been 
approved by MBLAX. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises, the mutual promises and 
covenants contained herein, MBLAX and City agree as follows: 

1. MBLAX Premises. City agrees to grant MBLAX the right to use that portion of the 
Premises identified on Exhibit B to this Agreement (the "MBLAX Premises") upon the 
terms and conditions contained in this Agreement. MBLAX's rights hereunder shall be 
subject and subordinate to the terms and conditions of the Lease. To the extent that the 
terms and conditions of the Lease are inconsistent with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, the terms and conditions of the Lease shall be controlling. 

2. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be for an initial term of five years beginning 
January 1,20 16, and ending on December 3 1,203 1, and shall be automatically 
extended from year to year thereafter unless prior to July 1 of any year, either of the 
parties has given written notice to the other party that it wishes to terminate this 
Agreement; provided, that in no event shall the term of this Agreement extend beyond 
the term of the Lease, even if such notice of termination has not been given. The terms 
and provisions of this Agreement shall apply to all extended t e n s  of this Agreement. 
Either party shall have the right, at its expense, to record a memorandum of this 
Agreement in the office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

3. Annual Maintenance Fee. In consideration of City permitting MBLAX to use the 
MBLAX Premises, as provided herein, and in consideration of City agreeing to 
maintain the MBLAX Premises as provided hereinafter, MBLAX shall pay City an 



EXHIBIT 3 

annual maintenance fee ("Annual Maintenance Fee"). The amount of the MBLAX 
Annual Maintenance Fee shall be $6,955.00 per year and shall be increased to account 
for inflation every five (5) years by ten percent (10%) (the "Inflation Adjustment"). 
The first Inflation Adjustment shall be applied to the Annual Maintenance Fee due and 
payable on December 15,2021. The Annual Maintenance Fee shall be due and 
payable on December 15 of each year this Agreement (or renewal thereof) is in effect. 
The first such Annual Maintenance Fee is due and payable on December 15,2016. 

City shall keep reasonably detailed records of the cost of maintaining the MBLAX 
Premises, and the records may be inspected by MBLAX, at its request. 

In the event that this Agreement is terminated prior to the payment of the Annual 
Maintenance Fee for the year during which the termination occurs, MBLAX shall pay 
to City the Annual Maintenance Fee prorated as of the termination date on or before 
December 15 of the year in which termination occurs. 

4. Use of Premises. The MBLAX Premises may be used by MBLAX and by its invitees, 
guests and those who participate in its athletic programs and other MBLAX sanctioned 
events ("MBLAX Activities"). With respect to any events sanctioned by MBLAX 
other than lacrosse events, prior approval must be obtained by MBLAX from City for 
said use. 

5. Prioritv of Use. During the term of this Agreement, MBLAX shall have priority for the 
scheduling and use of the athletic facilities located on the MBLAX Premises, subject 
to the rights of the Board referred to in paragraph eleven in the Lease. The City hereby 
appoints MBLAX to act on City's behalf with respect to rights, duties, responsibilities 
and obligations set forth in paragraph 1 1 of the Lease; provided, that City may revoke 
such appointment, at any time, by written notice to MBLAX. 

6.  Construction of Improvements. Subject to the prior written approval of City, MBLAX 
may, at its expense, install or construct upon the MBLAX Premises such equipment, 
buildings, structures and other improvements as MBLAX may desire, including, but 
not limited to, athletic fields and related equipment, fences, roads, outdoor lighting 
equipment and grandstands, bleachers, and other seating facilities for spectators 
(hereinafter collectively called "Improvements"), provided such Improvements comply 
with all applicable ordinances, laws, regulations and building codes and provided that 
such Improvements do not impair use of the MBLAX Premises by the Board or other 
authorized users. The size of, type of, and materials used in, the Improvements shall be 
in the discretion of MBLAX, subject to the prior approval of City. During the term of 
this Agreement, City shall have the right to maintain, repair, alter, remove and replace 
any or all of the Improvements without the approval of MBLAX, provided, that all 
such work and construction shall be done in a manner and at times that will not 
unreasonably interfere with the operations of MBLAX. 



EXHIBIT 3 

7. Removal of Imerovements. At any time within sixty days after the expiration or early 
termination of this Agreement, MBLAX shall have the right to remove from the 
MBLAX Premises, at its expense, any or all of the Improvements which are located 
upon the MBLAX Premises at that time, which were constructed entirely by MBLAX, 
or solely with MBLAX funds. City shall have the right to require MBLAX to remove 
any such Improvements at any time prior to expiration or termination of this 
Agreement, upon thirty (30) day written notice. If MBLAX does not do so, City may 
remove such Improvements at the cost of MBLAX. Any Improvements which are not 
removed by MBLAX from the MBLAX Premises after said notice shall become the 
property of City upon the expiration of said sixty-day period. 

8. Maintenance and Reeair of Premises and Grounds. 

a. City shall generally maintain the MBLAX Premises in a clean and orderly 
condition and shall likewise generally maintain the Improvements. Such 
maintenance shall include planting grass on the fields, cutting grass and 
providing landscaping. Any maintenance or repair work which is the 
obligation of City to perform may be performed by employees of City or, at 
the option of City, may be performed by another party who is an 
independent contractor or is acting in any other capacity. 

b. Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, City shall thereafter 
have no further obligation to MBLAX to maintain the MBLAX Premises. 

c. On or about November I st of each year, MBLAX shall deliver to City a list 
of work which it would like for City to consider during the period between 
November 1st and the following January 15th. City may undertake such 
work in its sole discretion. 

d. MBLAX will request parents of participants in its programs to assist in 
keeping the MBLAX Premises clean, and MBLAX will require the 
participants to remove and dispose of loose trash from fence lines and 
fields after each game held on MBLAX Premises. 

9. Rules and Rermlations. MBLAX may adopt rules and regulations for the use of the 
MBLAX Premises by MBLAX. Any such rules and regulations shalI be submitted to 
the City for its review and approval. City may adopt or implement such additional 
rules and regulations concerning use of the MBLAX Premises from time to time in its 
discretion. 

10. Utilities. Utility service, including field lighting to the MBLAX Premises, is included 
in the Annual Maintenance Fee and MBLAX shall not be required to pay directly for 
utility services which are finished to the MBLAX Premises. Field lighting will be 



provided for scheduled practices and games only, unless special permission is obtained 
from City. 

1 1. Concession Oserations. MBLAX may operate and receive any profits from the sale of 
concessions on the MBLAX Premises during MBLAX Activities 

12. Tournaments. The MBLAX Premises may be used for Tournaments. All applications 
for Tournaments to be held on the MBLAX Premises must be submitted to City no 
later than thirty days before the beginning of such Tournament. "Tournaments" are 
defined as state, national, or regional Tournaments involving teams other than those 
organized and operating under the supervision of MBLAX. If it is determined by City 
that the notice for any Tournament is not adequate, City shall not be obligated to 
prepare the field or fields which will be used for such Tournament. 

13. Profits From Tournaments and other Activities of MBLAX. A11 profits derived from 
tournaments and MBLAX Activities shall be used for the maintenance, repair, 
improvement and benefit of the MBLAX Premises (hereinafter referred to as "the 
Improvement of the MBLAX Premises") or for MBLAX operations. Profits derived 
from tournaments and MBLAX Activities in each year shall be used for the 
Improvement of the MBLAX Premises or operations during the calendar year in which 
such profits were earned or during the following calendar year. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, MBLAX and City may agree that some or all of the profits from any year 
may be retained and spent during succeeding calendar years if specifically agreed upon 
in writing by MBLAX and City. MBLAX shall maintain true and accurate accounting 
records which will show its revenues, expenditures and profits for each fiscal year and 
which shall be made available for inspection by City upon request. If the MBLAX 
Activities are not exclusively held on the MBLAX Premises and involve facilities in 
other cities or jurisdictions, for the purposes of this paragraph, profits shall include 
only those profits specifically derived from use of the MBLAX Premises (if such can 
be identified) or the portion of the overall profits from MBLAX Activities attributable 
to use of such facilities. 

14. Public Liability Insurance. During the entire term of this Agreement, MBLAX shall 
maintain, at its expense, general public liability insurance or similar insurance as it 
may consider necessary in connection with the MBLAX Premises (but in an amount of 
at least $1,000,000.00). The City and the Board shall be named as additional insureds 
on such policy. The policy and the issuer of the policy shall be subject to the written 
approval of City, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The policy shall 
provide that it may not be cancelled or any coverage thereunder reduced unless City 
and Board are given at least thirty days prior written notice of such cancellation or 
change. A copy of each such policy shall be delivered to the City Manager of City 
promptly upon its issuance. 



EXHIBIT 3 

15. Assignment. MBLAX shall not have the right, without the specific written permission 
of City, to assign its rights under this Agreement; provided, however, that MBLAX 
may assign its right to use some or all of the MBLAX Premises to Mountain Brook 
Soccer, Mountain Brook Athletics or other athletic entities or associations which have 
in place a Facility Use Agreement with City upon notice to City. Any such assignment 
shall not relieve MBLAX of its obligations under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of City. MBLAX shall have the right to permit a party or parties 
which are not boards or agencies of, or otherwise related to, City or MBLAX to 
manage or operate concession operations on the MBLAX Premises in any manner 
which is satisfactory to City and MBLAX. 

16. Damages to Improvements: Fire Insurance. Neither City nor MBLAX will have the 
obligation to obtain fire or other casualty insurance on the Premises or Improvements 
thereupon. If the City insures the improvements and if some of the Premises shall be 
damaged by any casualty that is insurable under City's insurance policy on the 
Premises, City shall be entitled to receive the insurance proceeds therefrom and may 
elect to either retain the proceeds or restore the Premises. Nothing contained herein 
shall render MBLAX liable for any repairs to, rebuilding, or replacement of City's 
property on or about the Premises or shall otherwise obligate City to repair, replace, or 
restore the Premises or any Improvements thereupon. 

Default. This Agreement may be terminated by either party if the other party commits 
a default hereunder and does not cure the default within the time periods specified 
hereinafter. In the event of any such default, the non-defaulting party may give written 
notice of such default to the defaulting party. If the defaulting party does not cure such 
default within thirty days of its receipt of such notice, this Agreement shall be 
considered terminated, except that, if the nature of the default is such that it cannot 
reasonably be cured within said thirty-day period, the non-defaulting party may not 
terminate this Agreement if the defaulting party begins the cure of the default within 
said thirty-day period and proceeds to complete the cure of such default with due 
diligence and within a reasonable period of time. 

18. Laws and Reerulations. MBLAX agrees to comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, 
orders, rules and regulations relating to the manner of their use and occupancy of the 
MBLAX Premises. 

19. Covenants of Citv: Ouiet Enioynent. City wanrants and represents to MBLAX that it 
has the right to permit MBLAX to use the MBLAX Premises under the terms of this 
Agreement, that the Lease has been duly executed by City, that Board has not given 
City any notice of default under the Lease, and that to the best of the knowledge, 
information, and belief of City, the Lease is a valid and binding obligation of the 
Board and City. City covenants to keep MBLAX in possession of the MBLAX 
Premises during the term of this Agreement, but City shall not be liable for the loss of 

5 



EXHIBIT 3 

use of the MBLAX Premises by the exercise of the power of eminent domain, and City 
agrees that it shall not exercise the power of eminent domain to terminate this 
Agreement or to obtain the MBLAX Premises or to terminate MBLAX's right to use 
the MBLAX Premises. 

20. Covenants of Citv. MBLAX represents and warrants to City that it has the right to 
enter into this Agreement and that this Agreement has been duly authorized and 
approved by MBLAX. 

31. Entrv bv Citv and Board. City and Board may enter and inspect the MBLAX Premises 
at any reasonable time for any reason. 

22. Amendment of Aereement. This Agreement, including attachments, constitute the 
entire agreement between the parties hereto and may not be amended, modified, 
altered or changed in any respect except by an instrument in writing signed on behalf 
of the parties hereto. 

23. Severabilitv. If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to 
any person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the 
remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such tenn or provision to persons or 
circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shaH not 
be affected thereby, and each tenn and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and 
shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

24. Notices. When any notice is required or permitted to be given in connection with this 
Agreement, such notice shall be given by depositing it in the United States mail (either 
certified mail or registered mail), postage prepaid and addressed as foliows, or to any 
other address of which either party gives the other party written notice by the method 
provided herein: 

to MBLAX: 

Mountain Brook Lacrosse 
2501 2oth Place South 
Suite 450 
Birmingham, AL 35223 
Attention: James A. Harris, 111 

to City: 
City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 
Attention: City Manager 



EXHIBIT 3 

25. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit 
of, MBLAX and City, and their respective successors and assigns. 

26. Captions. The captions used in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not 
affect the meaning of any provision of this Agreement. 

27. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance 
with, the laws of the State of Alabama. 

28. Administration of Contract bv Park and Recreation Board. The City designates its 
Park and Recreation Board as the Administrator of this Agreement on behalf of City. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mountain Brook Lacrosse has caused this Agreement to be executed 
by its duly authorized President, and City of Mountain Brook has caused this Agreement to be 
executed by its duly authorized Mayor, all as of the day and year first above written. 

MOUNTAIN BROOK LACROSSE 

By: 
Its President 

ATTEST: 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

By: 
Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 



EXHIBIT 3 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said county in said State, hereby 
certify that Richard Keller, whose name as President of Mountain Brook Lacrosse is signed to the 
foregoing Lease and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being 
informed of the contents of the conveyance, he, as such officer, and with full authority, executed 
the same voluntarily for and as the act of Mountain Brook Lacrosse. 

Given under my hand and official seal, this the d a y  of ,2016. 

Notary Public 

STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said county in said State, hereby 
certify that Lawrence T. Oden whose name as Mayor of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, is 
signed to the foregoing Lease and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, 
being informed of the contents of the conveyance, he, as such officer, and with full authority, 
executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama. 

Given under my hand and official seal, this the - day of ,2016. 

Notary Public 



EXHIBIT A 
EXHIBIT 3 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

20150325000302880 11 17 
Bk: LR201511 Pg:27635 
Jefferson Countv.Alabarna 
I cartif th is  i n s t r k n t  I l l o d  on: 
0312512015 01 00 21 Pfl LEASE 
J u d g a  of Probate- Illan L .  King 

THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY: 
Whit Colvin 
Bishop, Colvin, Johnson & Kent, LLC 
191 0 First Avenue North 
Birmingham, AL 35203 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (the LLLease'l) is made and entered into as of h e  ?%day of 
February, 2015, by and between the BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN 
BROOK, a board of education in the State of Alabama (hereinafter called "Board") and the CITY OF 
MOUNTARJ BROOK, ALABAMA, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of 
Alabama (hereinafter called "City"). 

WHEREAS, the Board owns certain real estate adjacent to its school buildings upon which have 
been constructed recreational and athletic facilities; and 

WHEREAS, City has contributed significant financial support for such recreational and athletic 
facilities; and 

WHEREAS, City and Board entered into a lease dated October 1,1989 whereby City and Board 
agreed to make the recreational and athletic facilities available, through the City, for recreational and 
athletic use by residents of the City under the terms and conditions set forth thcrein; and 

WHEREAS, the lease has been beneficial to both City and Board, as well as students and 
residents and both City and Board desire to enter into a new lease to replace the original lease and its 
amendments. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises, the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, and othcr good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, City and Board agree as follows: 

1. kased Premises. The Board leases to City, and City leases from Board, that certain real 
property in the City of Mountain Brook, Jefferson County, Alabama, outlined in yellow on Exhibits A-1 
through A-6, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein, together with a11 buildings, 
improvements, rights-of-ways, licenses and other rights appurtenant thereto (the "Premises"), for and 
during the Initial Term (as hereinafter defined) and as may be extended as provided in this Lease. Board 
covenants to keep City in quiet possession of the Premises during the Term (but shall not be liable for the 
loss af use by eminent domain), subject, nevertheless, to the terms of this Lease. 

2. Rent. City will pay Board, as rent for the Premises, the sum of One Dollar (S1.OO) per 
year. 

3. Initial Term. The term of this Lease will commence on October 1,2014 and will continue 
through the 30th day of September, 2024 (the "Initial Term"). 

4. Additional Terms. After the conclusion of the Initial Term, this Lease will automatically 
renew itself for additional successive terns of ten (10) years up to a maximum cumulative lease period of 

Pa@ 1 of8 
h e  Alpmnml 

City of  Mounuin Bmok & 
Mounhin Bmok Baud olEduuIion 



EXHIBIT 3 EXHIBIT A 

eighty (80) years ("Renewal Terms"). Notwithstanding the above, either City or Board may elect to 
terminate the Lease prior to the end of the Initial Term or any Renewal Term by giving the other party 
written notice no later than one hundred eighty (1 80) days before the end of the then current term, but 
only for the following reasons: 

a+ Funds are not available to meet the obligations set forth in this Lcase; or 

b. The Premises are no longer suitable or needed for City recreational purposes; or 

c. The Premises are needed by Board for constnrction of school buildings. 

In the event of any of the foregoing and upon the provision of the specified notice, the Lease will be 
terminated as of the end of the then current term. 

5. Use of Premises. City covenants and agrees to use and occupy the Premises for 
recreational and related municipal purposes, for community activities, and for other related activities as 
may be deemed by the City of Mountain Brook to be beneficial to its residents, licensees, invitees, and 

I 

guests. The Premises may further be utilized as a location for the City's Park and Recreation 
Department; to store materials and items used to maintain the Premises; for communication facilities for 
the City, including telecommunication equipment and towers, radio facilities and similar facilities; and 
other uses ancillary ro the primary recreational use of the Premises. 

City will have the right to establish rules and regulations for use of the Premises for all purposes 
except for the Board related use described in Paragraph 11 of this Lease. City will have the discretion to 
determine applicable charges and fees in conjunction with its own activities and programs. Board will 
not be required to pay any such charges or fees for use of the Premises, except as is otherwise provided in 
this Lease. City will not be obligated to permit the use of the Premises, or any part thereof, for any 
program or cvcnt of the Community Education Program, or any other entity, which, in City's discretion, 
it cannot reasonably accommodatc. 

6. Condition of the Premises. The Premises are leased to City subject to existing casements, 
if any, and all laws, ordinances, orders and regulations of any lawful governmental authority having 
jurisdiction over the Premises. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as a warranty that the 
Premises are in good condition or are fit or suitable for the uses or purposes for which they are leased, 
and Board has made no representation or promises with respect to the Premises except as expressly set 
forth in this Lease. City has examined the Premises and accepts them in the physical condition that now 
exists (except as otherwise expressly provided in this Lease). The Premises are being leased "AS IS" and 
it is acknowIedgcd that the City may need to make additional improvements to the Premises to make 
them suitable for the City's continued use. 

Without limitation of the foregoing, Board specifically disclaims any express or implied 
covenants, warranties or representations (a) as to the past, present or future existence of any toxic 
substances or hazardous waste on or under the Premises or the improvements located thereon, (b) as to 
the complimce by the Premises or the use thereof with any applicable building or zoning codes or other 
land use regulations, any applicable environmental laws or regulations, or any other applicable laws or 
regulations, or (c) as to fitness for a particular purpose or of habitability of the Premises. City will be 

Pagc 2 or8 
Lcur Agrccmcnt 

City of Mountain B m k  8 
Mountain Bmok Board of Edueatlm 



EXHIBIT 3 EXHIBIT A 

responsible for any hazardous materials stored or utilized in the City's operations on the Premises and 
City's use of the Premises shall fully comply with all applicable building and zoning codes and other 
land use regulations, any applicable environmental laws or regulations and any other applicable laws or 
regulations. The foregoing covenants, warranties, and representations of the City shall survive the 
termination of this Lease. 

7. Maintenance and Reaairs. City will, throughout the Initial Term or Renewal Terms ofthis 
Lease, be responsible for all utility, operational, construction, maintenance and repair costs with respect 
to the Premises and any improvements thereupon, except as provided herein. 

N. Annual Maintenance Fee. In consideration of City's agreement to maintain the Premises, 
Board will pay City an Annual Maintenance Fee. The Annual Maintenance Fee shall be ninety two 
thousand two hundred dollars (S92,200.00) per year (unless otherwise adjusted pursuant to the provisions 
concerning extraordinary adjustment set forth below) and shall be increased to account for inflation every 
five (5) years by ten percent (10%) (the "Inflation Adjustment"). 

In any year that Board's Share of Operating Expenses, as defined on Exhibit B hereto, exceeds the 
Annual Maintenance Fee (including the lnflation Adjustment) for that year by twenty percent (20%) or 
more, the Board shall pay the Board's Share of Operating Expenses for that year and such shall be 
considered the Annual Maintenance Fee for that year. 

The Annual Maintenance Fee shall be due and payable on December 15 of each year and shall 
cover the period from October 1 of the preceding year through September 30 of the year in which the 
payment is due. In !he event that this Lease is terminated prior to the payment of the Annual 
Maintenance Fee for the Least Year during which the termination occurs, Board shall pay to City the 
Annual Maintenance Fee prorated as of the termination date on or before December 15 of the year in 
which termination occurs. City shall keep records of all costs attributed to the Premises and will make 
those records available for inspection by the Board upon request. 

9. Alterations and Improvements. City may make, at its expense, improvements, 
modifications, and alterations to the Premises including but not limited to the athletic fields and related 
equipment; fences; paved or unpaved driveways, roads and parking areas; outdoor lighting equipment; 
grandstands, bleachers and other seating facilities; restrooms, field houses, concession stands, press 
boxes, and other buildings; and playgrounds or similar facilities (collectively "Improvements"). The size 
and type of  the materials used in the Improvements shall be in the discretion of the City. City shaII have 
the right to maintain, repair, alter, remove, or replace the Improvements without the approval of the 
Board, provided that: 

a. Ali such work and construction shall be done in a manner and at such times that 
will not unreasonably interfere with the operation of any school now or hereafter 
located on the Board's property; and 

b. Such Improvements are consistent with the permitted uses for the Premises. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the removal of any building from the Premises shall require the prior 
written consent of the Board, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

P a p  3 or8 
L a s e  Agrcpnmt 

City o~Mcunllin Bmk & 
Moundn Brook I 3 4  of Education 



EXHIBIT 3 EXHIBIT A 

No new Improvement that exceeds $20,000.00 in cost will be constructed without the Board's 
approval. For such Improvements, the Board will pay one-third of the cost or as otherwise may be agreed 
upon by the parties. No new Improvement that exceeds $5,000.00 in cost will be constructed without 
first notibing the Board in writing. At the end of each fiscal year, City shall provide Board with a written 
summary of the nature and value of any and all Improvements, and alterations to the Premises made by 
City during the preceding fiscal year (if any). City further agrees to provide, upon request, financial 
records and documents related to all such Improvements. 

All improvements, modifications and alterations to the Premises shall adhere thereto and become 
the property of Board, with the exception of machinery, playground equipment, equipment, outdoor 
recreational equipment and items, such items as arc usually classified as furniture and trade tixtures, and 
such other items (other than leasehold improvements) which have been brought onto the Premises by 
and at the expense of City (coilectively, "City Property"). Any such City Property shall remain the 
property of City, and City may remove the City Property provided all terms and conditions of this Lease 
have been complied with by City. In the event this Lease is terminated, as provided for in paragraph four 
(4) of this Lease, City shall be entitled to remove the City Property prior to the date of termination. Any 
City Property remaining on the Premises as of the date of termination shall become the property of the 
Board. 

10. Care and Maintenance of Prerniseh. City shall generally maintain the Premises in a clean 
and orderly manner and shall likewise generally maintain the lmprovements and keep them in good 
repair during the term of this Lease. City will comply, at all times and in all respects, with all the 
applicable laws and ordinances relating to nuisance on or about the Premises, and the City will not by 
any act or omission render the Board liable for any violation thereof. City agrees to permit no waste of 
the Premises, but on the contrary to take good care of same, and upon termination of this Lease to 
surrender possession of same without notice. 

I 1. Continued Use bv Board. Board, its agents and representatives may enter the Premises at 
all reasonable times for the purpose of inspection thereof. The Board wilt have priority of use of the 
entire Premises for School Related Use. For the purposes of this Lease, "School Related Use" means 
Board directed or supervised programs and activities occurring during school hours while school is in 
session. The Board will also have priority of use for the following portions of the Premises for use other 
than School Related Use as provided herein: 

Mountain Brook Hiph School Mountain Brook Jr. H i ~ h  School 

Field # 7 and Softball Field House 
Field # 1 

Upper Soccer Field 
Tennis Courts 

Lower Soccer Fields 

Football Field 

The Board agrees, with respect to the portions of the Premises for which it maintains priority of use, to 
either provide City with a schedule of all events by July I of each year or to provide no less than forty- 
five days' notice as to the dates and times that it will use those portions of the Premises. 

Page 4 of  !I 
tcuc Agncmcnt 

City Mountain B m k  & 
Nounbin Bmak B o d  of Educuia 



EXHIBIT 3 EXHIBIT A 

City has priority of use of the Premises during all times and for all purposes other than those 
specifically described above. 

Board may continue to use the Premises from time to time for events and for other occasions 
upon reasonable notice to City, pmvided that such use does not conflict with any prior-scheduled event, 
meeting or gathering of the City or any of its sub-lessees. In the event the Board needs to utilize any part 
of the Premises during times when the City has priority of use due to exigent circumstances, the City 
agrees to make reasonable attempts to accommodate such need if it can be accommodated without undue 
hardship on the City. 

12. Pawen t  of Charnes. City will furnish or arrange for the furnishing of all necessary utility 
services to the Premises and will pay promptly all related charges. Likewise, City agrees to pay all sewer 
rentals and other charges becoming due, levied under the authority of the laws of the State of Alabama or 
any laws approved subsequent to the execution of this lease, provided that said charges are altocable in 
whole or in part to the Premises. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each party will remain responsible for 
the payment for power and water services to the Premises pursuant to Exhibit C to this Lease. If Board 
elects to transfer to the City any utility service for which it has rcsponsibiliry as set forth in Exhibit C, 
City will assume such responsibility and the Annual Maintenance Fee shall be increased by a utility 
supplement consisting of the annual cost of the utitity being transferred averaged over the two fiscal 
years prior to the year of transfer. 

Board and City shall each at its own expense and for its own benefit obtain and maintain 
whatever general public liability insurance or similar insurance each considers necessary in connection 
with the Premises. Neither City nor Board shall be obligated to obtain any such insurance by this Lease. 

I ' 
13. Destruction or Damages to Imurovcments. Neither City nor Board will have the 

obligation to obtain fire or other casualty insurance on the Premises or Improvements thereupon. If the 
City insures the Improvements and if some of the Premises shall be damaged by any casualty that is 
insurable under City's insurance policy on the Premises, City shall be entitled to receive the insurance 
proceeds therefrom and may elect to either retain the proceeds or restore the Premises. Nothing 
contained herein shall render Board liable for any repairs to, rebuilding, or replacement of City's 
property on or about the Premises or shall otherwise obligate City to repair, replace, restore the Premises 
or any Improvements thereupon. 

14. Notices. All notices and demands authorized or required to be given to the City under any 
provision hereof must be in writing and given by certified mail or hand delivery addressed to the City at 
its principal ofice as follows: 

City of Mountain Brook 
Attn: Its City Manager 

56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 3521 3 

RgeS of6 
k Agttmmt 

City afMoualrin Bmnk & 
Maunuin Bmdr Bard of Education 



EXHIBIT 3 EXHIBIT A 

All notices herein authorized or required to be given to the Board under any provision hereof must be in 
writing and given by certified mail or hand delivery addressed to the Board at its principal office as 
follows: 

Mountain Brook Boafd of Education 
Attn: Its Superintendent 

32 Vine Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 3521 3 

15. Assimment or Subletting. City shall have the right to assign this Lease in part or in whole 
or to sublet the Premises or parts thereof to duly constituted boards, departments or agencies of the City 
or aftiliates thereof and to the following corporations, groups or entities, their successors and assigns 
(collectively "Approved Sublessees"): 

a. Mountain Brook Athletics, Inc. 

b. Mountain Brook Soccer Association 

c. Mountain Brook Lacrosse Association 

d. American Tower Corporation (limited to the existing cell tower at Mountain Brook 
High School) 

e. Persons or Groups using Premises pursuant to City's Standard Rental Agreement, 
(current agreement attached as Exhibit D), as may be amended. 

City may not assign its rights undv this Lease or sublet all or any part of the Premises, permit occupation 
of the Premises or any part thereof, or grant any license for use of all or any of the Premises, to or by 
corporations, groups, entities or persons other than Approved Sublessees without the written consent of 
Board. As a condition precedent to such sub-letting, the sub-lessee must assume, in writing, all the 
obligations of the City hereunder, including, but not limited to, those obligations pertaining to use of the 
Premises under Paragraph 5. Unless stated otherwise herein, such assumption shall not operate to release 
City from any agreement or understanding on the part of City expressed or implied in this Lease. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, City shall have the right to permit a party or parties other than Approved 
Sublessees to manage or operate one or more concession operations on Premises whether as a 
sublicensee, licensee, independent contractor or otherwise. 

16. Waste Treatment Plant. The City currently operates and maintains a Waste Treatment 
Plant ("Plant") on the Premises to serve the Premises and some of the Board's facilities. City will 
continue to operate, inspect, maintain, repair, replace or improve the Plant, any related buildings and 
improvements as needed to serve the Premises. City may enlarge or improve the Plant as needed to serve 
the Premises; provided, however, that the City shall not be obligated to increase the Plant capacity due to 
Board use. Board will adopt or implement measures, as recommended by City, to ensure that its use of 
Plant does not compromise Plant operations or increase maintenance or operational costs by City. 

17. Waiver. The failure of City or Board to insist upon strict performance of any of the 
covenanks or conditions of this Lease or to exercise any option herein conferred in any one or more 
instances shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such covenants, conditions or 

h o e  6 or8 
tcrv Agrcmcnt 

City of Mamuin Bmok & 
Mom J n  Brook Boud or Educuion 



EXHIBIT 3 EXHIBIT A 

options, but the same shall be and remain in h l l  force and effect. 

18. Bindinv Effect. The agreements, covenants, conditions and terms contained in this Lease 
shall bind and inure to the bencfit of City and Board and their respective successors and permitted 
assigns. 

19. Entire A~recment. This Lease contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto, 
and neither party is bound by any representation or agreements of any kind except as herein contained, 
and no amendments hereto shall be considered as effective unless and until the same shall be reduced to 
writing and executed by all the parties hereto. 

20. Construction. The captions or headings in this Lease are provided for convenience only 
and shall not affect its construction or interpretation. All words used in this Lease shall be construed to 
be of such gender or number as thc circumstances require. Unless otherwise expressly providcd, the 
word "including" does not limit the preceding words or terms. The terms "herein", "hereof', "hereto" or 
"hereunder1' or similar terms shall be deemed to refer to this Lease as a whole and not to a particular 
paragraph or section. The recitals and exhibits attached hereto shall be considered a part of this Lease. 

21. Severability. If any provision of this Lease is held invalid or unenforceable by any court 
of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this Lease shall rcmain in full force and efftct. Any 
provision of this Lease held invalid or unenforceable only in part or degree shalt remain in full force and 
effect to the extent not held invalid or unenforceable. 

22. Countemarts. This Lease may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed to be an original copy of this Lcase and all of which, when taken together, shall bc 
deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

23. Force Maieure. The parties hereto shall bc excused for the period of any delay in the 
performance of any obligations hereunder when prevented from so doing by cause or causes beyond such 
party's control which shall include without limitation, civil commotion, war, warlike operations, 
invasion, rebellion, hostilities, military or usurped power, sabotage, governmental regulations or controls, 
fire and other casualty, inability to obtain any material services or financing or through acts of God. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and Board have executed and delivered this Lcase through their 
respective duly authorized representatives as of the date first above written. It is understood and agreed 
by the parties hereto that this Lease shall be binding upon the City and Board, and their assigns or 
successors in interest. 

MOUNTAIN BROOK BOARD OF EDUCATION 

ATTEST: 1 

Jane +ncndw, 
Chairman 

Superintendent and Secretary 

P.gc70fB 
Lau Agreement 

City orMountlin Brook & 
Mavltrin Bmok B o d  of W d o n  



EXHIBIT 3 EXHIBIT A 

By: 

~r&i&nt, City Council 

I - 

Lawrence T: Oden 
Mayor 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said county in said Slate, hereby certify 
that Jane Menendex, whose name as Chairman of the Mountain Brook Board of Education is signcd to 
the foregoing Lease and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed 
of the contents of the conveyance, she, as such officer, and with f i l l  authority, executed the same 
voluntarily for and 8s thc act of the Mountain Brook Board of Education. 

Given under my hand a d  oficial seal, this the a &y of k d  ,2015. 

Notary ~ u b l k  ' 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undmigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said county in said State, hereby certify 
that Virginia C. Smith, whose name as Presidcal of thc City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama is signcd to thc foregoing Lease and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day 
that, being informed of the contents of the conveyance, she, as such officer, and with fill authority, 
executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama. 

Given undcr my hand and officisl scal, this th 

Plgt 8 or # 
l xuc  Avcrncnl 

City nfMmnuin Rmc* & 
Mounlmn B d  Board af Educrcian 





E
X

H
IB

IT
 3
 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 3 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 3 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 3 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 3 



EXHIBIT 3 

Exhibit I3 

Board's Share of Operating Costs 

The " B o d s  Share of Operating Costsn will be determined by adding the following components: 

a. Base Fee of $30,000.00 

b Phase 3 Fiscal Year Operating and Capital Expenses divided by 3 

c. Average Salary and Benefits of City Park Employees Assigned to Premises less 
$30,000.00, divided by 3 

d. Chemical Costs less $8,000.00, divided by 3 

e. Lighting Maintenance Costs divided by 10. 



Exhibit C 

!Utility Payment Responsibility - Community Athletic Facilities 

Writ Nu. Meter Na a W  BOE 
hmmtain8mall-ry 
; Water 2709534 220225% X 
: Power 2693641013 3063762 X --- 
a Water 1676344 
, P m  16236-79Ol5 

' Water 146953.0 
Power 07111-4OfHlOUte 

I"'-- 
Larer-Flddr 

Wptu 2738014 
a Power S ~ ~ I Z - ~ W ~ S O C U S  

lUppcr-==- ' Water Unable to determine which meter 
P o w  60162-72018 

Water 2975424 
Power 06118-70010 Fkld lights 

59322-72## M H  Fkld 
hrmbburb 
, Waer NIA 

Pomr: 34323-UW2LighUng 
1 3-32021 New Sh~p 

5119(12-72004 [ k k d d ~  
~san.nooo SLM ~portr w 

.4 ., 

Unrnetered 
3mo9a 
3276539 

Unrnetered 



EXHIBIT 3 
Exhibit D 

CITY OF MOUNTAW BROOK 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA 

RENTAL AGREEMENT 

This agreement is entered into on this day, of 20-, by and between the City of 
Mountain Brook "City" through its Parks & Recreation Dept. as "Lessof', and 
is "Lessee", for facilities owned and operated by City located at "Facilities*' 
Rental privileges are available to residents and group5 when the majority of the p u p ' s  memberships arc Mountain 
Brook residents. All teams must submit a mstcr of team members that includes name. address, and phonc number. 

1. City hcrcby agrees that Lcsscc may usc thc facilitics for (he purpose of 
during the period beginning on I 1 fmm o'clock until A.M.P.M. (All 
activities shall cease at dusk in parks with no lighting and no later than 9:00 p.m. at lighted facilities.) (Except tennis 
coum - 10:OU p.m.), 
2. During this period Lessee shall have full and complete usc of the noted facilities for said purpose. 
3. Alcoholic beverages and gambting sbictly prohibited at all Parks & Recreation Board facilitics. 
4. All trash and titter must be disposed of before leaving facility. 
5. L a c e  agrees to pay the City the sum of $ , which sum shall be paid to Lessor, upon the execution 
of this agreement at the M.B. Parks & Rccwation ofFicc in accordance with the following fee schedule. Refunds arc 
only available should the event be canccled by the Lessor: 

Playing Fields: Football, Soccer, Baseball &Softball. 
Daytime 5301 hr, per field 
Lighkd S4 W hr. p a  field 
Serupnined off Sl5l ea. per field 
Tennis Courts S l tl hr. per court 
Ovcrton Pavilion S3Y 2 hrs. (Residents of Mounuin Brook) 

5701 2 hrs. (Non-Residents of Mountain Brook) 

PAYMENT - Make Check or Monev Order Payable to: City of Mountain Brook 

To rrscrve the abwe facilities, contact the following: 

LaTorya Mines, Parks & Rareation Dept. (205) 802-3877 Overtan Park 
Atlea Jones, Parks & Recrration Dept. (205) 802401 8 Turf Grass Fidds 
Brad Harl, Mtn. Bmok Athletics (205) 414-3854 Baseball, Softball, Football 

6. Lessee a p e s  to indemnify and boId harmlcss Lessor, its omcials, officers, employees and agenu; against all 
actions, causes of action, demands, damages, losses and expenses of any kind, including but not limited to, 
attorney's fces and court costs which may be asserted against, or suffered by, City on account of, or rising out of, 
this agrccrncnt or the usc of facilities by Lcsscc. In addition, Lsscc assumes all risks in connection with its usc of 
the facilitics. 
7. The term of this agreement may not be extended or modified except by a written agreement between City and 
Lcssct. 
8. By using the facilitics. Lcsscc agrecs chat it shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and 
regulations and that it shall not allow any activities to be conducted at the Facilities, wbich arc unsafe, dangerous or 
improper in any manner. 
9. If Lessee brcachcs any term of this agreement, City shall have the right to terminate this agreement by written or 
verbal notice to Lessee. 

Exccutcd on this day of , 20- 

Signature: Print Narnc: 

Email: Witness: 
20158325000302880 17/17 
8k: LR201511 Pg:27633 

. . - . - . - , - . - - , - 
Jefferson Caunty,Fllabarna 

. - - - - 0312.51 t5 0 1 . 0 o S I  Pll. LERSE - .  
F.. - 3 5  00 

Totrl at Feac and Taxas-S65 00 
MOATES 



EXHIBIT 3 

Exhibit B 

MBLAX Premises 

Mountain Brook Junior H i ~ h  School 

Football Field - Spring only 

Mountain Brook Elcmcntarv School 

Playing Field - Spring Only 

Exhibit B 
MB-MBA Agreement 



ORDINANCE NO. 1954 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 30-3(a) OF THE CITY CODE - 
TIME AND PLACE OF HOLDING COURT 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that Section 30-3(a) of the City Code is hereby amended as follows: 

1. "Sec. 30-3. - Time and place of holding court. 
(a) The municipal court of the city shall hold court commencing at 4:00 p.m. on 

Wednesday of each week. excevt a the fifth Wednesdav in each month1 

n the 
council chamber of city hall and at such other times as a municipal judge may 
continue or set a case." 

2. Re~ealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby 
expressly repealed. 

3. Severabilitv. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 
or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this 
ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 
publication as provided by law. 

ADOPTED: This 27th day of June, 2016. 

Councit President 

APPROVED: This 27th day of June, 2016. 

Mayor 



CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Cierk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as its meeting held on June, 2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting, 
and published by posting copies thereof on June -, 201 6, at the following public places, which copies 
remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road 
Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Cahaba River Walk, 3503 Overton Road 

City Clerk 


	2016-Jun-27 Formal Agenda
	2.  Minutes
	3.  Western ABC license
	4.  Ambulances
	5.  Library HVAC
	6.  Judge's compensation
	7.  St. Luke's public hearing
	8.  Facility use agreements
	    a.  MBA
	    b.  MBS
	    c.  MBLX
	9.  Court date & times



